


The Chubb Organization

In the spring of 1882, Thomas Caldecot Chubb

and his son Percy opened a marine underwriting

business in the seaport district of New York City.

Having collected $1,000 from each of 100 prominent

merchants to start their venture, they began to

insure ships and cargoes. The Chubbs were adept at

turning risk into success, often by helping policyholders prevent disasters in

the Ñrst place. By the turn of the century, Chubb had established strong

relationships with the insurance agents and brokers who placed their clients

with Chubb underwriters, and the original subscribers enjoyed a substantial

return on their investment in the young company.

Chubb & Son did not value size in itself but regarded it as a measure of

what had been achieved. Upon the company's 75th anniversary in 1957,

Hendon Chubb Ì who had joined his older brother Percy in the Ñrm in

1895 Ì noted, ""I think there is perhaps a tendency in American business to

over-emphasize mere size, whereas to me it should be a by-product of a job

well done.''

""Never compromise with integrity,'' also a Hendon Chubb principle,

captures the spirit of our companies. Each member of the Chubb organiza-

tion seeks to stand apart in bringing quality, fairness and integrity to each

transaction, for the beneÑt of all involved.

The Chubb Corporation was formed in 1967 and was listed on the New

York Stock Exchange in 1984. Based on market capitalization in 1995,

Chubb is the Ñfth largest insurer in the United States and among the top

Ñfteen worldwide. In addition to its traditional commercial and personal

property and casualty insurance business, it has important operations in life

and health insurance and real estate development. Chubb serves customers

all over the world with 10,000 employees throughout North America,

Europe, South America and the PaciÑc Rim.

No matter how wide the inÖuence of the Ñrm, we at Chubb still

measure success by a job well done. The principles of Ñnancial stability and

excellent service combined with the high caliber of our employees are the

mainstays of our corporation.
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To Our Shareholders:

The Chubb Corporation produced record results in 1995. Net income rose to $697 mil-
lion, or $7.85 per share, from $528 million, or $5.95 per share, in 1994. Operating income,
which excludes realized investment gains and is therefore an even better indicator of our
performance, increased 25% to $612 million. Our property and casualty business recorded
an underwriting proÑt of $56 million after taxes, reÖecting a combined loss and expense ratio
of 96.8%, our best in 17 years. Investment income climbed 7%. Earnings from life insurance
and real estate operations also showed good gains.

In light of these strong results, the Board of Directors at its meeting today raised the
quarterly dividend to $0.54 per share from $0.49 per share, an increase of 10%. The Board
also declared a two for one stock split to be distributed in early May. The information
presented in this report does not reÖect the stock split.

Property and Casualty Insurance
We owe the extraordinary results in our property and casualty business to a superb
underwriting performance by our people as well as to good fortune and gentle weather.
Property and casualty premiums rose 9%, including 6% growth in the United States, 17% in
Canada and 20% overseas. Our U.S. performance is especially gratifying. We grew faster
than the market and recorded a combined ratio of 96.7% in a year when we also were
implementing a major organizational reconÑguration. As we stated last year, this eÅort is
enabling us to better meet the needs of our producers and customers. Our staÅ did an
excellent job of furthering our business objectives while dealing with the inevitable concerns
that accompany change.

We are pleased to report that we are already beneÑting from the new structure. Our
goal is simply to make it easier to do business with Chubb, and to oÅer agents, brokers and
customers more versatile and Öexible options in building an insurance program, whether
local or global. While we will not complete the transition of our entire U.S. organization
until later in 1996, the feedback received on our eÅorts to date from producers and
customers alike has been positive.

Our international operations recorded an excellent year, with premiums exceeding
$1 billion and pre-tax operating earnings of more than $100 million. Canada reported strong
underwriting results, and our overseas operations continued to grow rapidly while also
achieving underwriting proÑtability. In this year's essay, we describe how we are building
Chubb's global property and casualty insurance capability, a capability we believe will
represent an increasingly important advantage in the years ahead.

We could not have achieved the exceptional results of 1995 without the extraordinary
contribution of our agents and brokers worldwide. Our producers are the essential link to
our customers. We look forward to continuing to strengthen these vital partnerships in 1996
and beyond.
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Two Year Financial Highlights

(in thousands except for per share amounts)

FOR THE YEAR 1995 1994

Revenues ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 6,089,191 $ 5,709,535
Net Income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 696,628 528,469
Net Income Per Share ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $7.85 $5.95
Dividends Declared Per Share ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1.96 1.84

AT YEAR END

Assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $22,996,525 $20,723,055
Shareholders' Equity ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5,262,729 4,247,029
Shareholders' Equity Per ShareÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $60.28 $48.92

Life Insurance and Real Estate
Our life insurance and real estate operations also enjoyed successful years, albeit in the face
of signiÑcant challenges. Chubb Life earned $28 million after taxes in 1995, doubling its
income from the previous year. Under the leadership of its new management team, Chubb
Life has undertaken a strategic shift, emphasizing our successful personal insurance
business. We have clearly deÑned our target customers as those individuals and business
owners who seek the added value and service for which Chubb has long been known. We are
providing these customers with attractive products designed to help them achieve their
wealth-creation and Ñnancial planning objectives. A key part of this strategy is deriving
synergy with our property and casualty distribution system. In 1995, the Chubb synergy
program was responsible for generating some 20% of Chubb Life's new business from
personal life insurance customers, and we expect this percentage to increase in future years
in the context of overall strong sales momentum.

At the same time, we are scaling back our group health operations while we consider a
number of alternatives with respect to our future in this business. In our two principal
markets of New York and New Jersey, we have implemented aggressive rate increases to
stem losses from community rated indemnity business. We continue to encourage conver-
sion to managed care programs, and we provide our market of small group customers with a
Ñrst-class managed care alternative through our ChubbHealth joint venture. In 1995, we
made good progress in reducing group health losses; we will make further progress in 1996.

Bellemead Development Corporation, our real estate subsidiary, earned $6 million in
1995, rebounding from a $2 million loss in 1994. In response to the continued weak demand
for oÇce space in the past few years, Bellemead has concentrated on the management of
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existing commercial properties and pursued residential development in Florida and in our
home state of New Jersey. Healthy demand for our residential developments and low
vacancy rates in our commercial properties are expected to contribute to increased proÑts for
Bellemead in 1996.

Looking Ahead
1996 is already oÅ to a diÇcult start with punishing weather throughout much of the United

States. Given the catastrophe losses we have experienced so far in the Ñrst quarter, it will

take the best eÅorts from all of our people to produce a repeat of 1995's performance.

Nevertheless, we have great conÑdence in the ability of our staÅ and are optimistic about

our 1996 prospects.
We will be guided in the coming year by the same goals as in the past. These are to:

‚ Produce an above-average return for our shareholders;
‚ Achieve an underwriting proÑt in our property and casualty business;
‚ Grow our business in international and domestic markets;
‚ Manage expenses eÅectively; and
‚ Exceed our customers' expectations.

We also will continue to have a voice on industry issues. We are particularly troubled
by a trend among a handful of insurers to divide their business between continuing and run-
oÅ companies, using the latter to house long-tail, uncertain liabilities, often involving their
asbestos- and environmental-related exposures. These transactions have come to be known
as ""good company/bad company'' restructurings, with good reason. We believe that
isolating risks in this manner violates the insurance promise and does a serious disservice to
policyholders, the industry and, ultimately, the public. We will continue to oppose these
restructurings.

In closing, we acknowledge that the results we enjoyed in 1995 would not have been
possible without the unwavering commitment and very hard work of our employees
worldwide. Wherever we do business in the global marketplace, it is the people Ì our
employees working with our agents, brokers and customers Ì who deÑne the quality and
integrity of Chubb worldwide.

Chairman, President and Chief Executive OÇcer Vice Chairman

March 1, 1996
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Becoming a leader in
the Global Marketplace

While we have established individualEach Chubb oÇce is a gateway to the

oÇces in international markets throughoutworld.
our history, the late 1980s marked theIn less than a decade, we have trans-
beginning of a concerted program of over-formed our property and casualty business
seas expansion. More and more of ourfrom a predominantly North American
customers, including middle-market com-enterprise to an international insurer ca-
panies as well as established multinationalpable of serving agents, brokers and cus-
corporations, were taking their businessestomers virtually anywhere on the globe.
abroad and were looking for risk protection.With 100 oÇces worldwide, each sharing a
As we organized to meet their emergingcommon approach, philosophy and cul-
needs, we saw that there were also oppor-ture, Chubb oÅers a truly global insurance
tunities in many foreign markets to oÅerand risk management capability that few
locally based businesses the kinds of cover-competitors can match.
ages and services that Chubb was wellThe development of Chubb's global
known for in North America. To focus ourcapability can be attributed to the skill and
eÅorts, we set a goal of deriving 25% ofenthusiasm of our people in 28 countries
our property and casualty premiums fromaround the world and to the strength of the
outside the United States by the year 2000,strategy that ties them and our worldwide
while maintaining our historic commit-operations together. It can also be ascribed
ment to underwriting proÑtability.to the foresight a decade ago that saw

From the beginning, our goal hasdemand for international risk protection
been to serve the worldwide needs of cus-beginning to grow at an increasing rate and
tomers by building a coordinated networkthe accompanying opportunity to create a
of oÇces that share Chubb's standards,proÑtable new specialization for Chubb.
approach and culture. So we have investedThe following pages describe why our in-
in constructing our own network, branchternational expansion has been successful
by branch, rather than buying componentand deÑne our priorities for Chubb's future
parts from others. At the same time, wein the global marketplace.
recognize and respect the individual qual-Since our founding in 1882 as the
ities and culture of each country, prov-New York-based managing marine under-
ince and city. We work closely with localwriter for the Sea Insurance Company of
agents and brokers to develop products thatLiverpool, Chubb & Son has been active
draw on our traditional strengths and ex-in international trade. With our roots in
pertise, but are shaped to address localmarine insurance, we have long cultivated
market needs. As in the United States, werelationships with merchants and insur-
ensure the quality of the business we writeance brokers in other countries.
by selecting the risks we assume our-
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selves, rather than depending on third customers expanding around the globe, we

parties to make these critical decisions. provide access to the breadth of coverage

and level of service they are used to atWe attribute the steady, proÑtable
home.growth of Chubb's business outside the

United States to this strategy and to the Consistent with our strategy in the

characteristics that deÑne our presence in United States, we also oÅer a number of

every market worldwide: specialized coverages internationally,

‚ We know our strengths and specialties including directors and oÇcers liability

and build on them in each market. insurance; customized coverages for Ñnan-

‚ We view each market as unique in terms cial institutions, energy companies and

of its economy, culture, business and technology businesses; and personal insur-

insurance environment. ance for aÉuent individuals. This

‚ We compete Ñrst on quality, value and selective approach has been integral to

service, not on price. our success.

Taken together, these capabilities For many of our customers in Europe,

provide a signiÑcant competitive advantage for example, the diÅerence that Chubb

at home and abroad, and have enabled us provides is expertise in specialized insur-

to create a one-of-a-kind global capabil- ance programs for which they have grow-

ity. In 1995, our international premiums ing needs. Directors and oÇcers liability

topped $1 billion, and we recorded a com- coverage, historically an American phe-

bined ratio on this business of 97%. Pre- nomenon, is one such area. As the liability

tax earnings from international operations climate in Europe begins to change and as

were more than $100 million. With inter- European companies expand internation-

national premiums exceeding 20% of the ally, doing business in the United States or

company's total, we are well on our way to listing their securities on U.S. stock mar-

meeting our 25% goal. kets, the need to protect their directors and

oÇcers from liability exposure becomes

more of a priority for these Ñrms. EuropeanWe build on our strengths
companies and their brokers are lookingNo matter where we establish a presence,
for help in evaluating risks and under-we will always emphasize value-added
writing coverages with which they haveservice and the coverages in which we have
limited experience.demonstrated expertise. Our reputation as

marine underwriters is well known. In Chubb's expertise positions us well to

commercial property markets, we diÅeren- meet this growing demand, and we have

tiate ourselves through expert loss control built leading positions in several markets

consulting and fair and prompt claims throughout Europe, including the United

settlement. For our U.S.-based multi-peril Kingdom, the largest D&O market outside
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Chubb Property & Casualty OÇces

ASIA/PACIFIC EUROPE LATIN AMERICA UNITED STATES
(Singapore) (London) (Miami) East South

Bangkok, Thailand Amsterdam, Netherlands Barranquilla, Colombia (Westchester, NY) (Dallas, TX)
Beijing, China Barcelona, Spain Belo Horizonte, Brazil Albany, NY Albuquerque, NM
Hong Kong Birmingham, England Blumenau, Brazil Baltimore, MD Atlanta, GA
Melbourne, Australia Brussels, Belgium Bogot fia, Colombia Boston, MA Birmingham, AL
Seoul, Korea Dublin, Ireland Buenos Aires, Argentina Bridgewater Hills, NJ Charlotte, NC
Shanghai, China D usseldorf, Germany Cali, Colombia BuÅalo, NY Dallas, TX
Shenzhen, China Glasgow, Scotland Curitiba, Brazil Fair Lawn, NJ Denver, CO
Singapore Hamburg, Germany Medillin, Colombia Harrisburg, PA Des Moines, IA
Sydney, Australia Lloyd's of London M πexico City, M πexico Hartford, CT Fort Lauderdale, FL
Taipei, Taiwan London, England Porto Alegre, Brazil Long Island, NY Houston, TX
Tokyo, Japan Lyon, France Recife, Brazil Murray Hill, NJ Kansas City, MO

Madrid, Spain Rio de Janeiro, Brazil New Haven, CT Nashville, TN
CANADA Manchester, England Santiago, Chile New York, NY San Antonio, TX
(Toronto) Milan, Italy San Juan, Puerto Rico Philadelphia, PA St. Louis, MO

Calgary, AL Munich, Germany S¿ao Paulo, Brazil Princeton, NJ Tampa, FL
Montreal, QU Paris, France Richmond,VA Tulsa, OK
Oakville, ON Reading, England Rochester, NY West
Toronto, ON Washington, DC (Encino, CA)
Vancouver, BC Westchester, NY Concord, CA

North Fresno, CACHUBB ATLANTIC
(Pittsburgh, PA) Los Angeles, CAINDEMNITY LTD.

Chicago, IL Newport Beach, CAHamilton, Bermuda
Cincinnati, OH Phoenix, AZ
Cleveland, OH Portland, OR
Indianapolis, IN San Diego, CA
Itasca, IL San Francisco, CA
Louisville, KY San Jose, CA
Milwaukee, WI Seattle, WA
Minneapolis, MN
Pittsburgh, PA
Troy, MI(Zone Administrative OÇce)
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of North America, as well as France, ing, life insurance and securities Ñrms. We

Belgium and the Netherlands. We were the are now looking to extend this expertise

Ñrst insurer to write D&O coverage in into other rapidly growing Ñnancial service

Germany. Because we work closely with a sectors. Another 30% of our Canadian

company's senior management to put premiums come from personal lines where

together a D&O program, there is often the we enjoy solid proÑtability and have suc-

opportunity to build upon this relationship cessfully established Chubb as the market

in other areas. of choice among aÉuent home owners.

Since we began our major overseasIn a similar fashion, our Ñnancial
expansion, we have been selective aboutinstitutions group has drawn on our sub-
the markets we choose to enter. We preferstantial experience in the U.S. to develop
industrialized economies and developedits international capability. It has been
insurance markets because they are likelyinvolved in the international banking mar-
to evidence greater demand for sophisti-ketplace for 30 years and has been an
cated risk protection. We avoid countriesactive participant in the London Ñnancial
that are experiencing political or economicÑdelity and computer crime markets since
disorder. While we see little opportunity inthe 1970s. Today, Chubb is one of only a
smaller economies whose prospects forfew insurers that provides errors and omis-
development lie well into the future, we dosions and employee theft and fraud cover-
seek to establish ourselves early in attrac-ages developed speciÑcally for Ñnancial
tive, larger developing markets, hence ourservices companies. In the UK, our Ñnan-
positions in such countries as Brazil,cial institutions business has grown at an
Mexico and Thailand. In countries withaverage annual rate of 20% for the last Ñve
major long-term potential Ì China is oneyears; we are enjoying considerable growth
example, India potentially another Ì wein newer markets such as Brussels and

are prepared to invest patiently for theAmsterdam as well. With our success in

such lines of business as D&O and Ñnancial future.

Ñdelity, it is no surprise that our European Wherever local laws and regulations
business is weighted toward specialty permit, we seek to build rather than buy
commercial. our way into new markets. To ensure that

we speak the language of the market-Similarly, almost half of our business
place, we staÅ our oÇces with local people.in Canada, the foreign market where we
In the last Ñve years, our staÅ outside thehave been active longest, is made up of
United States has virtually doubled tospecialty commercial and energy custom-
1700 people. Three quarters of our branchers. Chubb Canada has built on our knowl-

managers in Europe are European. Expa-edge of Ñnancial services to establish

leading positions among Canadian bank- triates represent less than 10% of the staÅ
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in Asia/PaciÑc and Latin America. All but

a handful of Chubb Canada's managers

are Canadian.

We are also investing in the future of

our international business. Since 1991, we

have hired more than 250 trainees outside

of the United States. All have undergone

the same extensive training provided to

their U.S. counterparts, so that, as they

begin to develop their technical expertise,

they are also Ñrmly grounded in the Chubb

approach and culture.

Once we decide to establish a pres-

ence in a new city, region or country, we

bring to the marketplace the same qualities

19951994199319921991

(in millions of dollars)

International Premium Growth

$0
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$1,000

that customers expect from Chubb in our

established markets: Ñnancial strength;

sophisticated underwriting capabilities; fair
ability to operate equally well on a local or

and prompt claims settlement; substantial
regional basis. We tailor our products and

local underwriting and claim-handling
services according to each individual mar-

authority; a commitment to superior ser-
ket's needs, industries and customs.

vice; and a tradition of building long-term
We entered Chile in 1992, for exam-relationships with the independent agents

ple, partly because we saw a clear Ñtand brokers through whom we distribute
between that country's primary industry,our products. Our major non-U.S. subsidi-
mining, and the worldwide capabilities ofaries carry the highest Ñnancial ratings:
our energy resources group. In just twoA°° from A.M. Best and AAA from
years, mining coverages have grown to rep-Standard & Poor's. As in the United
resent approximately 30% of our businessStates, we follow a similar conservative
in Chile, and we are the leading U.S.approach with regard to the composition of
insurer of mines in the country.our international investment portfolios.

Our success is due both to our exper-These are weighted heavily toward top-
tise in the industry and to our commitmentquality, marketable securities.
to service. Chubb was the Ñrst insurer to

We approach each market as unique oÅer Chile's brokers and their customers

While the Chubb strategy is designed to expanded, ""all risk'' coverage. We also

build a global company, at its heart is our introduced loss control services that in-
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volve quarterly visits, regular testing of mine Europe, we are moving rapidly from our

infrastructure systems, and routine tours of initial bases in London and D usseldorf into

mine tunnels. In addition to minimizing other cities. In the last three years, we

losses, these visits are valuable investments have opened oÇces in Glasgow,

in long-term relationships with brokers and Manchester, Reading, Birmingham and

with the companies we insure. Southeast London in the UK, and in Mu-

nich and Hamburg in Germany. SinceOur specialized understanding of the
1990, we have opened 11 new oÇces inrisks that mining companies face and our
Europe; in 1995 these produced more thanreputation for careful underwriting has led
30% of our European premium.to participation in mining insurance pro-

grams in Mexico, Colombia, Peru and We are also seeing the success of our

Argentina, the most recent country to be approach in the evolution of our customer

added to our Latin American network. base. Most of our multi-line customers in

Europe, which include leading names inCentral to developing indigenous bus-
industries ranging from consumer productsiness is the cultivation of strong, long-term
to Ñnancial services to telecommunica-relationships. In many markets, brokers
tions, began by buying one line of coverageand customers view the arrival of a new
from us. Now they purchase several.foreign insurer with skepticism; they have
Between 1990 and 1995, Chubb Europe'sseen numerous others enter the market
average premium per oÇce has grown bywith great fanfare only to depart a year or
50%, with much of this increase comingtwo later. We recognize that to develop
from the expansion of relationships withlocal business, we must Ñrst put down the
existing customers.roots of a trusted local organization. We

concentrate on building relationships with In Canada, we have seen a similar

key brokers and commercial insurance cus- story develop. Among the top 1,000 Cana-

tomers. We introduce loss control services dian companies, Chubb has an insurance

and make sure that we live up to our relationship with 600. Many of these rela-

reputation for claims settlement. Most im- tionships are now in their sixth decade.

portant, we build a local team to staÅ the Service and our willingness to contrib-
operation. ute to the development of the local market

Once we have established ourselves, are important aspects of the relationship

we follow opportunities for expansion. We building process. Last summer in China,

opened our Barcelona oÇce in 1995, for where Chubb is seeking a license, we es-

example, building on relationships culti- tablished the Chubb School of Insurance

vated through our initial Ñve years of doing with the Shanghai University of Finance

business in Madrid. In the UK and Ger- and Economics. Located on the university's

many, the biggest insurance markets in campus, the Chubb School oÅers courses
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in risk management, loss control, market- ers have yet to experience our claim service

ing, specialty underwriting and catastrophe and are unfamiliar with insurer-sponsored

management to Chinese insurance indus- loss control programs, we are frequently

try regulators, local insurance agents and pleased to discover that our reputation pre-

brokers, and the staÅs of local insurers, cedes our actual presence.

including our own. Beyond our Ñnancial The foundation of Chubb's reputation
investment, we are also providing faculty is prompt, fair claim settlements. But this
and training materials. The Chubb School, reputation has other attributes as well,
and our three representative oÇces in among them our underwriting expertise,
Beijing, Shanghai and Shenzhen, not only our broader-than-usual coverages, the
enable us to lend our expertise to the speed with which we can provide a quote or
development of the Chinese market, but bind coverage, our loss control programs,
also put us in touch with this singular our willingness to listen to our customers
market's special conditions and requirements. and producers, and our ability to develop

In Asia/PaciÑc, a region that for innovative new products to meet emerging

Chubb stretches from Japan to Australia to needs. These are all reasons customers

India, we have enjoyed strong relation- come to Chubb, and as such, they repre-

ships that have grown steadily since 1972, sent powerful advantages in any market.

when we opened for business in Australia On one level, we provide value-added
and established a representative oÇce in service simply by having people and re-
Tokyo. Today, we remain one of only a sources available locally. At a time when
small group of foreign non-life insurers ac- many of our competitors are consolidating
tive in Japan. Similarly, when we opened their Ñeld operations and withdrawing
an oÇce in Seoul, South Korea, we were from local markets, we continue to ex-
the Ñrst foreign insurance company to be pand. Local presence has been critical to
licensed there in 20 years. Chubb is still our ability to underwrite the risks associ-
one of only three foreign non-life compa- ated with major infrastructure projects
nies in that country. Since 1991, Chubb's such as portions of the Channel Tunnel, the
business in the Asia/PaciÑc region has Singapore and Hong Kong transportation
grown at an annual rate of nearly 30%. systems, and the Sydney Harbor Tunnel.

Increasingly in Asia, Ñnancial institutions
We compete on quality, value and service and energy companies that have tradition-
Perhaps because we adhere to the same ally sought coverage in the London mar-
standards in the 1990s that our founders ket are recognizing Chubb's growing local
established in the 1880s, customers, bro- capabilities.
kers and regulators often look to us as the

Expanded scope of coverage is an-
standard-setters for the industry. Even in

other Chubb hallmark. We typically oÅer 
newer, developing markets, where custom-
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broader coverage terms than our competi- One recent example involves our

tors and are generally the Ñrst in any Minneapolis branch, which has provided

market to push beyond the boundaries of coverages for a mid-western-based U.S. 

traditional coverages. In Germany, Chubb manufacturer of recreational equipment for

was the Ñrst company to introduce an more than 10 years. When the company

""all-risk'' property policy. Similarly, we acquired a new subsidiary based in Scandi-

have successfully introduced a Spanish lan- navia, our customer found itself needing

guage package policy in Chile, Colombia to insure administrative, manufacturing,

and Mexico. In Australia, we introduced warehousing and distribution facilities in

liability coverage for directors and of- continental Europe, the UK, Taiwan, Ja-

Ñcers. We have broken new ground in the pan and the United States. Working with

United States with a global insurance con- the company's agent, Chubb underwriters

tract that is capable of providing one or and loss control experts from four oÇces

more lines of coverage worldwide. combined their eÅorts to win us the entire

account by producing a global insuranceAlready, our global network is giving
program that includes many of the com-us a real edge in head-to-head competi-
mercial coverages we oÅer worldwide. Ourtion with national and regional insurers in
future success lies in being known forthe United States and with large and
relationships and solutions such as these.otherwise formidable local insurance com-

Collaboration does not come easy,panies in overseas markets. These Ñrms

especially to large, multi-national organiza-often have long-standing local relation-
tions. It requires a cohesive corporate cul-ships, but they lack the reach outside their
ture and an understanding of what we arehome countries, a capability that their cus-
trying to achieve that extends across alltomers increasingly seek.
oÇces and operations. We continually seekThe true test of any global network,
ways to reinforce this understanding and to

particularly in a service industry, is the
communicate throughout the Chubb or-

ability of its components to collaborate to
ganization that we regard collaboration as

serve the needs of its customers. This
one of the most important skills our em-

means overcoming the size of the corpora-
ployees have Ì and the most powerful

tion, diÅerences between cultures, and the
attribute that they can demonstrate to our

logistics of long distances and time zones
agents, brokers and customers. Many of

to enable teams of individuals in disparate
our branch managers, including those from

locations to build and service global
Charlotte and Singapore, Boston and

accounts. Milan, and Chicago and Brussels, have
We are seeing more and more of our participated in an exchange program

branch oÇces embrace global teamwork. established with this in mind. By

""shadowing'' their counterparts in other
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countries, these managers gain Ñrst-hand 4. We are the insurer that agents, brokers

knowledge of a marketplace other than and their customers worldwide look to

their own. With exchanges such as these, for multinational risk management

we are creating a collective, global con- advice, service and protection, wherever

sciousness among senior Chubb executives these producers and customers do

that will inÖuence the way we conduct business.

business and serve our customers for years 5. We achieve our 25% international pre-

to come. mium goal and establish it as a platform

for future growth.
The Chubb global capability

We are close to meeting all Ñve crite-We are well on our way toward establishing
ria. Our integrated infrastructure is largelya new specialization for Chubb, that of the
in place. While our competition will as-global insurer. This global capability rep-
sume diÅerent forms in diÅerent parts ofresents a combination of expertise, infra-
the world, no other insurer can match ourstructure and experience that takes years
combination of resources, reputation, ser-to put together and is diÇcult to replicate.
vice and commitment on a global basis.This may be why few property and casualty
These attributes will increasingly distin-insurers are vying for the global market,
guish Chubb around the world for the bal-and fewer still will capture a signiÑcant
ance of this century and into the next asshare of it.
we continue to build on our success.

Chubb's global capability has Ñve

elements:

1. We have proÑtable and growing of-

Ñces Ì each staÅed by Chubb experts

doing business in the Chubb manner Ì

in the major and secondary insurance

markets that are attractive to us

worldwide.

2. In these markets, we become an insurer

of choice, known for our service in

commercial and personal lines, and a

market leader in the specialty lines that

Chubb has traditionally emphasized in

the United States.

3. We develop a book of business in each

country that is balanced between mul-

tinational insurance programs and local,

indigenous customers.
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Board and Management Changes

During 1995, several changes occurred Twenty Vice Presidents were elected. They

among the Directors and Officers of the are: J. Michael Baldwin, Deborah L. Bronson,

Corporation and its principal subsidiaries. R. Jeffrey Brown, Robert E. Callard,

At The Chubb Corporation, Ernesta G. William S. Crowley, Gardner R.

Procope and Robert G. Stone, Jr. retired as Cunningham, Jr., Robert S. Holley, Jr.,

Directors. Mrs. Procope had served as a Kathleen S. Langner, Kirk H. Larsen,

Director since 1977 and Mr. Stone had Robert A. Lippert, Kevin F. Madden, Lisa M.

served as a Director since 1972. Their counsel McGee, Judy Merante, Daniel A. Pacicco,

and wisdom will be missed by all who had Robert J. Pellegrinelli, Roger E. Pickard,

the pleasure of working with them. Victor J. Sordillo, Richard W. Spaulding,

Theresa M. Stone was elected an Clifton E. Thomas and Katherine M. Tusa.

Executive Vice President and John J. Degnan Donna M. Lombardi was elected Vice

and Edward Dunlop were elected Senior President and Associate Counsel.

Vice Presidents. At Chubb Life Insurance Company of

At Chubb & Son Inc., Edward O. America, Frederick N. Bailey, M.D.,

Darwin, Robert C. Reiss and William W. Richard A. Croak and Donald L. Stevens

Roper, III retired as Managing Directors and retired as Vice Presidents. Each had

Senior Vice Presidents, and David S. Decker, distinguished careers with Chubb Life.

James D. Dixon, Albert H. Hayes, John P. Charles C. Cornelio and Michael O'Reilly

Madigan, Jr. and Verle A. Petri retired as were elected Senior Vice Presidents.

Vice Presidents. Each of them had long, Arthur V. Anderson was elected Vice

distinguished careers at Chubb. President and Corporate Actuary and

Emelia M. Accardi, John L. Angerami, J. Michael Gannon was elected Vice

Jimmy R. Deaderick, Baxter W. Graham, President and Counsel. Sandra M.

Donna M. Griffin, John Pacheco, Jr. and MacIntyre and  Edward C. Mackenzie were

Gary C. Petrosino were elected Managing elected Vice Presidents.

Directors. John P. Cavoores was elected an At Bellemead Development Corporation,

Executive Vice President and George F. Andrew A. McElwee, Jr. was elected an

Breuer, Alan C. Brown, Paul J. Krump, Executive Vice President and Joseph Adamo

Donald B. Lawson, Michael J. Marchio, was elected a Senior Vice President.

Gerardo G. Mauriz, John Pacheco, Jr., Joanne F. Meisler was elected Senior Vice

Kenneth C. Simmons and Gary J. Tully were President, General Counsel and Secretary.

elected  Senior Vice  Presidents during 1995. Kirby White was elected a Vice President.
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Supplementary Financial Data

In Thousands

Years Ended December 31

1995 1994 1993

Property and Casualty Insurance

Underwriting
Net Premiums WrittenÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $4,305,992 $3,951,209 $3,521,295
Increase in Unearned Premiums ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (158,830) (174,926) (141,457)

Premiums Earned ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4,147,162 3,776,283 3,379,838

Claims and Claim Expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2,669,981 2,519,359 2,204,098
Operating Costs and ExpensesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,393,373 1,288,692 1,181,316
Increase in Deferred Policy Acquisition CostsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (29,223) (39,751) (34,726)
Dividends to Policyholders ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 18,877 16,294 14,242

Underwriting Income (Loss) Before Increase in Unpaid
Claims for Asbestos-Related Settlement and Return
Premium for Medical Malpractice Commutation ÏÏÏÏÏ 94,154 (8,311) 14,908

Increase in Unpaid Claims for Asbestos-Related
Settlement ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì (675,000)

Return Premium for Medical Malpractice Commutation ÏÏÏ Ì Ì 125,000

Underwriting Income (Loss) Before Income TaxÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 94,154 (8,311) (535,092)
Federal and Foreign Income Tax (Credit) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 38,500 (500) (197,600)

Underwriting Income (Loss)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 55,654 (7,811) (337,492)

Investments
Investment Income Before Expenses and Income TaxÏÏÏ 613,242 570,531 541,749
Investment ExpensesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10,255 10,050 8,040

Investment Income Before Income TaxÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 602,987 560,481 533,709
Federal and Foreign Income Tax ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 95,800 85,500 78,300

Investment Income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 507,187 474,981 455,409

Property and Casualty Income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 562,841 $ 467,170 $ 117,917

Life and Health Insurance
Premiums and Policy ChargesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 622,937 $ 836,293 $ 801,236
Investment Income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 232,950 208,745 205,891

Total Revenues ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 855,887 1,045,038 1,007,127

BeneÑtsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 549,219 752,205 669,422
Operating Costs and ExpensesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 265,403 274,079 248,976

Life and Health Income Before Income TaxÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 41,265 18,754 88,729
Federal Income Tax ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 13,225 4,251 26,212

Life and Health IncomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 28,040 $ 14,503 $ 62,517

Real Estate
Revenues ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 287,795 $ 204,849 $ 160,650
Cost of Sales and Expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 280,099(a) 210,799 158,599

Real Estate Income (Loss) Before Income TaxÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7,696 (5,950) 2,051
Federal Income Tax (Credit) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,686 (3,913) 4,244

Real Estate Income (Loss)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 6,010 $ (2,037) $ (2,193)

Corporate, Net of Tax ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 14,809 $ 7,661 $ 14,357

Realized Investment Gains, Net of TaxÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 84,928 $ 41,172 $ 151,619

INCOME BEFORE CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES ÏÏÏÏ $ 696,628 $ 528,469 $ 344,217

(a) Includes an increase of $10,000,000 to the allowance for uncollectible receivables resulting from the initial application of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 114, Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan.

The above federal and foreign income tax provisions represent allocations of the consolidated provision.
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Property and Casualty Underwriting Results

Net Premiums Written (In Millions of Dollars)

1995 1994 1993 1992 1991

Personal Insurance
Automobile ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 199.7 $ 187.7 $ 191.7 $ 190.9 $ 189.5
HomeownersÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 449.8 429.7 428.4 416.9 432.2
Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 202.1 196.3 194.4 188.6 193.0

851.6 813.7 814.5 796.4 814.7

Standard Commercial Insurance
Multiple Peril ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 678.5 604.0 528.8 483.2 482.6
Casualty ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 565.9 544.3 626.0(a) 481.7 456.1
Workers' Compensation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 212.1 190.2 172.0 168.6 177.1

1,456.5 1,338.5 1,326.8(a) 1,133.5 1,115.8

Specialty Commercial Insurance
Fidelity and Surety ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 757.4 706.7 618.7 585.1 538.0
Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 869.6 769.1 650.8 566.6 496.7

1,627.0 1,475.8 1,269.5 1,151.7 1,034.7

Reinsurance Assumed ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 370.9 323.1 235.5 160.9 147.1

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $4,306.0 $3,951.1 $3,646.3(a) $3,242.5 $3,112.3

(a) Includes a $125 million return premium to the Corporation's property and casualty insurance subsidiaries related to the commutation
of a medical malpractice reinsurance agreement. Excluding this return premium, net premiums written were $501.0 million for
Casualty, $1,201.8 million for Standard Commercial and $3,521.3 million in Total.

Combined Loss and Expense Ratios

Personal Insurance
Automobile ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 87.5% 96.5% 97.6% 100.2% 106.2%
HomeownersÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 93.7 110.7 100.2 113.3 106.0
Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 73.6 81.3 84.2 89.9 93.5

87.5 100.3 95.8 104.6 103.1

Standard Commercial Insurance
Multiple Peril ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 104.3 109.6 110.6 112.8 109.0
Casualty ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 118.7 106.2 190.6(b) 94.2 86.2
Workers' Compensation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 95.0 104.5 117.9 118.7 130.6

108.8 107.6 149.7(b) 105.7 102.6

Specialty Commercial Insurance
Fidelity and Surety ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 82.9 79.2 78.1 81.3 82.4
Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 97.0 103.4 103.4 100.2 98.9

90.4 91.7 91.0 90.5 90.3

Reinsurance Assumed ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 99.1 100.2 111.8 126.9 119.3

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 96.8% 99.5% 114.8%(b) 101.1% 99.5%

(b) Includes the eÅects of a $675 million increase in unpaid claims related to an agreement for the settlement of asbestos-related
litigation and the $125 million return premium related to the commutation of a medical malpractice reinsurance agreement.
Excluding the eÅects of these items, the combined loss and expense ratio was 100.7% for Casualty, 107.6% for Standard Commercial
and 99.0% in Total.

The combined loss and expense ratio, expressed as a percentage, is the key measure of underwriting proÑtability traditionally used in the
property and casualty insurance business. It is the sum of the ratio of losses to premiums earned plus the ratio of underwriting expenses to
premiums written after reducing both premium amounts by dividends to policyholders.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion presents our Property and Casualty Insurance
past results and our expectations for the Property and casualty income was signiÑ-

near term future. Separately, we present cantly higher in 1995 than in 1994; such

our consolidated Ñnancial statements and 1994 income was signiÑcantly higher than

related notes on pages 44 to 66 and other that in 1993. Results in 1993 were ad-

supplementary Ñnancial information on versely aÅected by a $675 million increase

pages 15, 16, 42 and 43, all of which are in loss reserves related to an agreement for

integral parts of the following analysis of the settlement of asbestos-related litiga-

our results and our Ñnancial position. tion (the ""$675 million charge''), which is

Net income amounted to $697 million further described under Loss Reserves.

in 1995 compared with $528 million in The $675 million charge was partially oÅ-

1994 and $324 million in 1993. Net in- set by a $125 million return premium to

come in 1993 reÖected a net charge of our property and casualty insurance subsid-

$357 million after taxes related to an agree- iaries related to the Corporation's decision

ment for the settlement of asbestos-related to exercise its option to commute a medi-

litigation as well as the Corporation's de- cal malpractice reinsurance agreement

cision to exercise its option to commute an (the ""$125 million return premium'').

unrelated medical malpractice reinsurance Property and casualty income after

agreement. Net income in 1993 also re- taxes was $563 million in 1995 compared

Öected a one-time charge of $20 million for with $467 million in 1994 and $118 million

the cumulative eÅect of adopting new ac- in 1993. Excluding the eÅects of the

counting requirements for postretirement $675 million charge and the $125 million

beneÑts other than pensions and for in- return premium, property and casualty in-

come taxes. come after taxes was $475 million in 1993.

Net income included realized invest- Earnings in 1995 beneÑted from highly

ment gains after taxes of $85 million, proÑtable underwriting results and an in-

$41 million and $152 million in 1995, 1994 crease in investment income compared

and 1993, respectively. Decisions to sell with 1994. Earnings in 1994 were adversely

securities are governed principally by con- aÅected by higher catastrophe losses, re-

siderations of investment opportunities sulting from the earthquake in California

and tax consequences. Thus, realized in- and the winter storms in the eastern and

vestment gains and losses may vary signiÑ- midwestern parts of the United States in

cantly from year to year. As a result, net the Ñrst quarter. Investment income in-

income may not be indicative of our oper- creased modestly in 1994 compared with

ating performance for the period. the prior year.
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Catastrophe losses were $64 million in

1995 compared with $169 million in 1994

and $89 million in 1993. Our initial reten-

tion level for each catastrophic event is

approximately $85 million. We did not

have any recoveries from our catastrophe

reinsurance coverage during the past three

years since there were no individual ca-

tastrophes for which our losses exceeded

the initial retention.

Net premiums written amounted to

$4.3 billion in 1995, an increase of 9%

compared with 1994. Net premiums writ-

ten in 1994 increased 12% compared with

1993, after excluding the $125 million re-

turn premium from the 1993 amount. Per-

sonal coverages accounted for $852 million

or 20% of 1995 premiums written, stan-

dard commercial coverages for $1,456 mil-

lion or 34%, specialty commercial

coverages for $1,627 million or 38% and

reinsurance assumed for $371 million or

8%. The marketplace continued to be com-

petitive, particularly in the commercial

classes. Price increases in the casualty

classes have been diÇcult to achieve for

several years. Prices for property classes

have remained stable in the past two years,

despite the signiÑcant catastrophe losses

Reinsurance
Assumed

PersonalSpecialty
Commercial

Standard
Commercial

1995

1994

1993

1992

1991 $3,112

Net Premiums Written (in millions of dollars)

Total Property & Casualty Insurance

$3,242

$3,646 (a)

$3,951

$4,306

Combined Loss & Expense Ratios (in percent)

80%

100%

120%

140%

160%

Specialty
Commercial
Personal

Reinsurance
Assumed

Standard
Commercial (b)

19951994199319921991

(a)  Standard commercial net premiums written include a
$125 million return premium to the Corporation's property and
casualty insurance subsidiaries related to the commutation of 
a medical malpractice reinsurance agreement. Excluding this 
item, total net premiums written were $3,521 million.

(b)  The standard commercial combined loss and expense ratio
for 1993 includes the effects of a $675 million increase in unpaid
claims related to an agreement for the settlement of asbestos-
related litigation and the $125 million return premium to the Cor-
poration's property and casualty insurance subsidiaries related 
to the commutation of a medical malpractice reinsurance agree-
ment. Excluding the effects of these items, the standard com-
mercial combined loss and expense ratio for 1993 was 107.6%.



experienced by the industry. Premium

growth in 1995 and 1994 was due primarily

to the selective writing of new business

and exposure growth on existing business.

A signiÑcant portion of premium growth in

both years was achieved outside the

United States, from our expanding interna-

tional branch network and our participa-

tion in the business of the Sun Alliance

Group plc.
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Underwriting results were highly prof-

itable in 1995 compared with near

breakeven results in 1994. Underwriting

results were extremely unproÑtable in 1993

due to the adverse eÅect of the $675 mil-

lion charge. The combined loss and ex-

pense ratio, the common measure of

underwriting proÑtability, was 96.8% in

1995 compared with 99.5% in 1994 and

114.8% in 1993. Excluding the eÅects of

the $675 million charge and the

$125 million return premium, the com-

bined loss and expense ratio was 99.0%

Loss RatioExpense Ratio

1995

1994

1993

1992

1991 99.5%

(in percent)

Loss & Expense Ratios 

101.1%

114.8% (a)

99.5%

96.8%
Combined

32.1

32.5

32.3

34.4

35.1

64.7

67.0

82.5

66.7

64.4



(a)  The loss and expense ratios for 1993 include the effects of a 
$675 million increase in unpaid claims related to an agreement for 
the settlement of asbestos-related litigation and a $125 million
return premium to the Corporation's property and casualty
insurance subsidiaries related to the commutation of a medical
malpractice reinsurance agreement. Excluding the effects of 
these items, the losses to premiums earned ratio was 65.5%, the 
expenses to net premiums written ratio was 33.5%, and the combined 
loss and expense ratio was 99.0%.



in 1993.

The loss ratio was 64.7% in 1995 com-

pared with 67.0% in 1994 and 82.5% in

1993. Excluding the eÅects of the

$675 million charge and the $125 million After a review of the cost of our

return premium, the loss ratio was 65.5% in casualty excess of loss reinsurance, we

1993. The loss ratios continue to reÖect modiÑed the program, principally for ex-

the favorable experience resulting from the cess liability and executive protection cov-

consistent application of our disciplined erages, eÅective January 1, 1996. The

underwriting standards. Losses from catas- changes include an increase in the initial

trophes represented 1.5, 4.5 and 2.5 per- retention for each loss from $5 million to

centage points of the loss ratio in 1995, $10 million and an increase in the initial

1994 and 1993, respectively. aggregate amount of losses that we will

Our expense ratio was 32.1% in 1995 retain for each year before reinsurance be-

compared with 32.5% in 1994 and 32.3% comes available. These changes in our

in 1993. Excluding the eÅect of the casualty reinsurance program are expected

$125 million return premium, the expense to increase net premiums written in 1996

ratio was 33.5% in 1993. The expense ratio by approximately $100 million.

in 1995 and 1994 beneÑted from growth in For many years, a portion of the

written premiums at a greater rate than U.S. insurance business written by the

the increase in overhead expenses. Ex- Corporation's property and casualty

penses were reduced by contingent proÑt subsidiaries has been reinsured on a quota

sharing accruals of $11 million in 1994 and share basis with a subsidiary of Sun

$9 million in 1993 relating to the medical Alliance. Similarly, a subsidiary of the

malpractice reinsurance agreement. Corporation has assumed a portion of 
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the agreements with Sun Alliance, our net

premiums written are expected to increase

by approximately $100 million in 1996.

The terms of the reinsurance agreements

with Sun Alliance will be reviewed annu-

ally, at which time further reductions in the

portion of each company's business that is

reinsured with the other may occur.

The impact on underwriting results in

1996 of the changes to our casualty rein-

surance program and to the agreements

with Sun Alliance is not expected to be

signiÑcant.

Personal Insurance

Premiums from personal insurance in-

creased 5% in 1995 compared with 1994;

such premiums in 1994 were virtually un-

changed from 1993. Our disciplined ap-

proach to pricing and risk selection,

together with our eÅorts to control expo-

sure in catastrophe prone areas, made it

OtherHomeownersAutomobile

1995

1994

1993

1992

1991 $814

Net Premiums Written (in millions of dollars)

Personal Insurance

$796

$814

$814

$852

Combined Loss & Expense Ratios (in percent)

70%

80%

90%

100%

110%

120%

Other

Homeowners

Automobile

19951994199319921991

diÇcult to increase homeowners and other

non-automobile business. However, grad-

Sun Alliance's property and casualty busi- ual progress was made in 1995 to increase

ness on a quota share basis, such partici- premiums written in non-catastrophe

pation having increased in recent years. prone areas. Personal automobile premi-

EÅective January 1, 1996, the agreements ums increased modestly in 1995 as the

pertaining to the exchange of reinsurance result of our marketing eÅorts to provide

were amended to reduce the portion of coverage for high value automobiles.

each company's business that is reinsured Our personal insurance business pro-

with the other. As a result, our property duced a substantial underwriting proÑt in

and casualty subsidiaries will retain a 1995 compared with breakeven results in

greater portion of the business they write 1994 and an underwriting proÑt in 1993.

directly and will reduce the amount of The combined loss and expense ratio was

reinsurance they assume from Sun 87.5% in 1995 compared with 100.3% in

Alliance. As a result of the changes to 1994 and 95.8% in 1993. Results in each
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of our personal classes of business im-

proved signiÑcantly in 1995.

Homeowners results were proÑtable

in 1995, beneÑting from lower catastrophe

losses, fewer large losses and a reduction

in non-catastrophe loss frequency. Results

were adversely aÅected by signiÑcant ca-

tastrophe losses in each of the past three

years, but particularly in 1994 due to the

winter storms and, to a lesser extent, the

California earthquake. Catastrophe losses

represented 10.4 percentage points of the

loss ratio for this class in 1995 compared

with 19.6 percentage points in 1994 and

13.4 percentage points in 1993. Other per-

sonal coverages, which include insurance

for personal valuables and excess liability,

were increasingly proÑtable in 1994 and

1995. Personal excess liability results im-

proved in both years due to favorable loss

experience. Our automobile business pro-

duced proÑtable results in each of the last

three years. Results in 1995 were particu-

larly strong due to lower loss frequency

and severity. Automobile results were ad-

versely aÅected each year by losses from

the mandated business that we are required

Multiple
Peril

CasualtyWorkers’
Compensation

1995

1994

1993

1992

1991 $1,116

Net Premiums Written (in millions of dollars)

Standard Commercial Insurance

$1,133

$1,327 (a)

$1,338

$1,456

Combined Loss & Expense Ratios (in percent)

70%

100%

130%

160%

190%

Multiple Peril

Casualty (b)

Workers’
Compensation

19951994199319921991

(a)  Casualty net premiums written include a $125 million return 
premium to the Corporation's property and casualty insurance 
subsidiaries related to the commutation of a medical malpractice
reinsurance agreement. Excluding this item, standard commer-
cial net premiums written were $1,202 million.

(b)  The casualty combined loss and expense ratio for 1993 
includes the effects of a $675 million increase in unpaid claims 
related to an agreement for the settlement of asbestos-related 
litigation and the $125 million return premium to the Corporation's 
property and casualty insurance subsidiaries related to the 
commutation of a medical malpractice reinsurance agreement. 
Excluding the effects of these items, the casualty combined loss
and expense ratio was 100.7% in 1993 . 

by law to accept for those individuals who

cannot obtain coverage in the voluntary

market.

Standard Commercial Insurance

Premiums from standard commercial in-

surance, which include coverages for

multiple peril, casualty and workers' com-

pensation, increased 9% in 1995 compared

with 1994. Premiums in 1994 were 11%

higher than in 1993, after excluding
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the $125 million return premium discussed Results were extremely unproÑtable in

below from the 1993 premium amounts. 1993 due to the adverse eÅect of the

Market competition has continued to place $675 million charge. Excluding the eÅects

signiÑcant pressure on prices. Premium of that charge and the $125 million return

growth in both years was due primarily to premium, the combined loss and expense

the selective writing of new accounts and ratio was 107.6% in 1993.

exposure growth on existing business. Pre- Casualty results in 1993 included the

mium growth in 1994 and 1995 for multi- eÅects of the $675 million charge and the

ple peril was particularly strong outside $125 million return premium. Excluding

the United States. the eÅects of these items, casualty results

Medical malpractice business, which deteriorated in 1994. Casualty results dete-

we stopped writing in 1984, was reinsured riorated further in 1995. In each of the

eÅective year-end 1985. The reinsurance past three years, casualty results have been

agreement included a commutation provi- adversely aÅected in varying degrees by

sion under which our property and casu- increases in loss reserves for asbestos-

alty subsidiaries had an option to reassume related and toxic waste claims. The sub-

the remaining liability of the reinsurer as stantial deterioration in 1995 was due to a

of December 31, 1995 and receive pay- larger increase in such reserves compared

ment of an amount determined by a with the prior year. The excess liability

formula based on experience under the component of our casualty coverages has

agreement. The property and casualty sub- remained proÑtable due to favorable loss

sidiaries exercised this option, which re- experience in this class. Results in the

sulted in an amount due from the reinsurer automobile component were also proÑtable

of $191 million and a reduction in reinsur- in each of the last three years.

ance recoverable from the reinsurer of Multiple peril results improved in

$66 million. The diÅerence of $125 million 1995 but remained unproÑtable. Results in

represents a return premium to our prop- the property component of this business

erty and casualty subsidiaries, which was improved in 1995 due to an absence of

recognized in 1993 at the time the Corpo- catastrophe losses. Results in 1994 were

ration announced its intention to exercise adversely aÅected by signiÑcant catastro-

the commutation option. The amount due phe losses, primarily from the earthquake

from the reinsurer was received in January in California. Catastrophe losses for this

1996. class represented 0.9 of a percentage point

Our standard commercial results were of the loss ratio for 1995 compared with

unproÑtable in each of the past three 8.4 percentage points in 1994 and 3.6 per-

years. The combined loss and expense ratio centage points in 1993. The liability com-

was 108.8% in 1995 compared with ponent of this business was particularly

107.6% in 1994 and 149.7% in 1993. unproÑtable in 1993 due to an increased

frequency and severity of losses.
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Workers' compensation results im-

proved substantially in 1994 and 1995.

Results were proÑtable in 1995 compared

with unproÑtable results in the prior two

years. Results in our voluntary business

have beneÑted from rate increases, reform

of the beneÑt provisions of workers' com-

pensation laws in many states, and the

impact of medical cost containment and

disability management activities. Results

from our share of the involuntary pools and

mandatory business in which we must par-

ticipate by law also beneÑted from these

positive factors.

Specialty Commercial Insurance

Premiums from specialty commercial busi-

ness increased by 10% in 1995 compared

with 16% in 1994. Premium increases for

our executive protection and Ñnancial Ñdel-

ity coverages were due primarily to new

business opportunities. Our strategy of

OtherFidelity & Surety

1995

1994

1993

1992

1991 $1,035

Net Premiums Written (in millions of dollars)

Specialty Commercial Insurance

$1,152

$1,270

$1,476

$1,627

Combined Loss & Expense Ratios (in percent)

70%

80%

90%

100%

110%

Other

Fidelity 
& Surety

19951994199319921991

working closely with our customers and our

ability to diÅerentiate our products have

enabled us to renew a large percentage of

this business. Growth in several of our results for these coverages had deteriorated

specialty classes was particularly strong in 1994 due in part to several large losses.

outside the United States in both years. Surety results were unproÑtable in 1995

Our specialty commercial business due to several large losses compared with

produced substantial underwriting proÑts in proÑtable results in 1994 and 1993.

each of the past three years with combined Marine results were proÑtable in 1995

loss and expense ratios of 90.4% in 1995, compared with unproÑtable results in 1994

91.7% in 1994 and 91.0% in 1993. Our and proÑtable results in 1993. Results in

executive protection and Ñnancial Ñdelity 1994 were adversely aÅected by signiÑcant

results were highly proÑtable in each year catastrophe losses, resulting primarily

due to favorable loss experience. Results in from the earthquake in California. Results

the non-Ñdelity portion of our Ñnancial in our smaller specialty classes were near

institutions business improved in 1995; breakeven in 1995 and 1994. These clas-
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ses were unproÑtable in 1993 due primarily with the California Insurance Department

to an increased frequency of large losses. to refund premiums, with interest, totaling

$6.7 million related to business written dur-
Reinsurance Assumed ing the rollback period. The agreement
Premiums from reinsurance assumed, settles all rollback refund obligations of the
which is primarily treaty reinsurance as- property and casualty subsidiaries related
sumed from Sun Alliance, increased 15% to Proposition 103. A consumer group
in 1995 compared with 37% in 1994. The challenged the rollback settlement. In De-
growth in both years was primarily due to cember 1995, an administrative law judge
an increase in our participation in the busi- aÇrmed the rollback settlement. The
ness of Sun Alliance. Premium growth in California Insurance Commissioner has
1994 also beneÑted from a Ñrming of adopted the judge's decision and the period
rates, primarily in the United Kingdom. during which the Commissioner's action

Underwriting results for this segment could be appealed has expired.
were near breakeven in 1995 and 1994

compared with unproÑtable results in Loss Reserves

1993. The combined loss and expense ratio Loss reserves are our property and casualty

was 99.1% in 1995 compared with 100.2% subsidiaries' largest liability. At the end of

in 1994 and 111.8% in 1993. Results in 1995, gross loss reserves totaled $9.6 bil-

1995 and 1994 beneÑted from rating mea- lion compared with $8.9 billion and

sures taken by Sun Alliance as well as $8.2 billion at year-end 1994 and 1993,

favorable weather conditions in the respectively. Reinsurance recoverable on

United Kingdom. such loss reserves was $2.0 billion at year-

end 1995 and 1994 compared with
Regulatory Initiatives $1.8 billion at the end of 1993. Loss
In 1988, voters in California approved reserves, net of reinsurance recoverable,
Ballot Proposition 103, an insurance reform increased 10% in 1995 compared with 7%
initiative aÅecting most property and casu- in 1994. Loss reserves included $1.0 billion,
alty insurers writing business in the state. $1.05 billion and $1.2 billion at year-end
Provisions of Proposition 103 would have 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively, related
required insurers to roll back property to the settlement of asbestos-related claims
and casualty rates for certain lines of busi- against Fibreboard Corporation, which is
ness to 20 percent below November 1987 discussed below. Excluding such reserves,
levels and would have required an addi- loss reserves, net of reinsurance recover-
tional 20 percent reduction in automobile able, increased 12% in both 1995 and 1994.
rates by November 1989. Substantial reserve growth has occurred

In May 1995, our property and casu-

alty subsidiaries reached an agreement
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each year in those liability coverages, pri- Judicial decisions and legislative ac-

marily excess liability and executive pro- tions continue to broaden liability and pol-

tection, that are characterized by delayed icy deÑnitions and to increase the severity

loss reporting and extended periods of of claim payments. As a result of this and

settlement. other societal and economic developments,

During 1995, we experienced overall the uncertainties inherent in estimating

favorable development of $36 million on ultimate claim costs on the basis of past

loss reserves established as of the previous experience have increased signiÑcantly,

year-end. This compares with favorable further complicating the already diÇcult

development of $30 million in 1994 and loss reserving process.

unfavorable development of $665 million The uncertainties relating to asbestos

in 1993. Such redundancies and deÑciency and toxic waste claims on insurance poli-

were reÖected in operating results in these cies written many years ago are exacer-

respective years. Excluding the eÅect of bated by judicial and legislative

the $675 million increase in loss reserves interpretations of coverage that in some

related to the Fibreboard settlement, we cases have tended to erode the clear and

experienced favorable development of express intent of such policies and in others

$10 million in 1993. Each of the past three have expanded theories of liability. The

years beneÑted from favorable claim se- industry is engaged in extensive litigation

verity trends for certain liability classes; over these coverage and liability issues and

this was oÅset each year in varying degrees is thus confronted with a continuing un-

by increases in loss reserves relating to certainty in its eÅort to quantify these

asbestos and toxic waste claims. exposures.

The process of establishing loss Our most costly asbestos exposure re-

reserves is an imprecise science and reÖects lates to an insurance policy issued to

signiÑcant judgmental factors. In many Fibreboard Corporation by PaciÑc Indem-

liability cases, signiÑcant periods of time, nity Company in 1956. In 1993, PaciÑc

ranging up to several years or more, Indemnity Company, a subsidiary of the

may elapse between the occurrence of Corporation, entered into a global settle-

an insured loss, the reporting of the loss ment agreement with Continental Casualty

and the settlement of the loss. In fact, Company (a subsidiary of CNA Financial

approximately 50% of our loss reserves at Corporation), Fibreboard Corporation,

December 31, 1995 were for claims that and attorneys representing claimants

had not yet been reported to us, some of against Fibreboard for all future asbestos-

which were not yet known to the insured, related bodily injury claims against

and for future development on reported Fibreboard. This agreement is subject to

claims.
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Ñnal appellate court approval. Pursuant to claims against Fibreboard will be shared

the global settlement agreement, a between PaciÑc Indemnity and Continental

$1.525 billion trust fund will be established Casualty on an approximate 35% and 65%

to pay future claims, which are claims that basis, respectively.

were not Ñled in court before August 27, PaciÑc Indemnity, Continental Casu-

1993. PaciÑc Indemnity will contribute ap- alty and Fibreboard have entered into a

proximately $538 million to the trust fund trilateral agreement, subject to Ñnal appel-

and Continental Casualty will contribute late court approval, to settle all present

the remaining amount. In December 1993, and future asbestos-related bodily injury

upon execution of the global settlement claims resulting from insurance policies

agreement, PaciÑc Indemnity and Conti- that were, or may have been, issued to

nental Casualty paid their respective shares Fibreboard by the two insurers. The trilat-

into an escrow account. Upon Ñnal court eral agreement will be triggered if the

approval of the settlement, the amount in global settlement agreement is disapproved

the escrow account, including interest by an appellate court. PaciÑc Indemnity's

earned thereon, will be transferred to the obligation under the trilateral agreement is

trust fund. All of the parties have agreed to therefore similar to, and not duplicative of,

use their best eÅorts to seek Ñnal court that under those agreements described

approval of the global settlement above.

agreement. The trilateral agreement reaÇrms

PaciÑc Indemnity and Continental portions of an agreement reached in March

Casualty have reached a separate agree- 1992 between PaciÑc Indemnity and

ment for the handling of all asbestos- Fibreboard. Among other matters, that

related bodily injury claims pending on 1992 agreement eliminates any PaciÑc

August 26, 1993 against Fibreboard. In Indemnity liability to Fibreboard for

February 1995, the agreement was asbestos-related property damage claims.

amended to extend for several years the In July 1995, the United States

period over which PaciÑc Indemnity will District Court of the Eastern District of

pay its remaining obligation, plus interest, Texas approved the global settlement

under this agreement. PaciÑc Indemnity's agreement and the trilateral agreement.

obligation under this agreement is not The judgments approving these agreements

expected to exceed $635 million, of which have been appealed to the United States

approximately $450 million remained un- Court of Appeal for the Fifth Circuit. The

paid at December 31, 1995. The agreement appeals are scheduled to be argued in

further provides that the total responsibil- early March 1996. The period of ultimate

ity of both insurers with respect to pending judicial review continues to lengthen and

and future asbestos-related bodily injury may well extend into 1997.
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Management is optimistic that the 1993 at the time the settlement was nego-

approval of the settlement will be upheld. tiated. Loss and expense payments related

However, if both the global settlement to the settlement aggregated $60 million

agreement and the trilateral agreement are and $204 million in 1995 and 1994,

disapproved by an appellate court, there respectively.

can then be no assurance that the loss We have additional potential asbestos

reserves established for future claims would exposure on insureds for which we wrote

be suÇcient to pay all amounts which excess liability coverages. Such exposure

ultimately could become payable in has increased due to the erosion of much of

respect of future asbestos-related bodily the underlying limits. The number of

injury claims against Fibreboard. claims against such insureds and the value

PaciÑc Indemnity, Continental of such claims have increased in recent

Casualty and Fibreboard have requested a years due in part to the non-viability of

California Court of Appeal to delay its other defendants.

decisions regarding asbestos-related insur- Our other remaining asbestos expo-

ance coverage issues, which are currently sures are mostly peripheral defendants,

before it and involve the three parties including a mix of manufacturers and dis-

exclusively, while the approval of the tributors of certain products that contain

global settlement is pending in court. asbestos as well as premises owners.

Continental Casualty and PaciÑc Indem- Generally, these insureds are named de-

nity have dismissed disputes against each fendants on a regional rather than a nation-

other which involved Fibreboard and were wide basis. We continue to receive  notices

in litigation. of new asbestos claims and new exposures

Prior to the settlement, the Corpora- on existing claims as more peripheral par-

tion's property and casualty subsidiaries ties are drawn into litigation to replace

had existing loss reserves of $545 million to the now defunct mines and bankrupt

cover a portion of their obligation under manufacturers.

these agreements. This amount included The courts have been engaged in de-

$300 million of general liability incurred veloping guidelines regarding coverage for

but not reported (IBNR) reserves which asbestos claims and have begun to articu-

were not previously classiÑed as speciÑc late more consistent standards regarding

reserves for asbestos claims since it was the extent of the obligation of insurers to

management's belief that doing so would provide coverage and the method of alloca-

increase the demands of plaintiÅs' attor- tion of costs among insurers. However, we

neys. Additional loss reserves of $675 mil- still do not know the universe of potential

lion were provided in the third quarter of claims. Therefore, uncertainty remains as
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to our ultimate liability for asbestos- garding pollution claims and have reached

related claims. inconsistent conclusions in their interpre-

Hazardous waste sites are another sig- tation of several issues. These signiÑcant

niÑcant potential exposure. Under the uncertainties are not likely to be resolved in

""Superfund'' law and similar state statutes, the near future.

when potentially responsible parties Uncertainties also remain as to the

(PRPs) fail to handle the clean-up, regula- Superfund law itself, which has generated

tors have the work done and then attempt far more litigation than it has brought

to establish legal liability against the about the cleanup of hazardous waste sites.

PRPs. The PRPs, with proper government Superfund's taxing authority expired on

authorization in many instances, disposed December 31, 1995. Notwithstanding

of toxic materials at a waste dump site or continued pressure by the insurance indus-

transported the materials to the site. Most try and other interested parties to achieve

sites have multiple PRPs. a legislative solution to rewrite this law,

Insurance policies issued to PRPs the Superfund issue may not be addressed

were not intended to cover the clean-up until after the 1996 elections. It is cur-

costs of pollution and, in many cases, did rently not possible to predict the direction

not intend to cover the pollution itself. that any reforms may take, when they may

Pollution was not a recognized hazard at occur or the eÅect that any changes may

the time many of these policies were writ- have on the insurance industry. In addi-

ten. In more recent cases, however, poli- tion, the Superfund law does not address

cies speciÑcally excluded such exposures. non-Superfund toxic sites. For that reason,

As the cost of environmental clean-up it does not cover all existing toxic waste

continues to grow, PRPs and others have exposures, such as those involving sites

increasingly Ñled claims with their insur- that are subject to state law only. Such

ance carriers. Ensuing litigation extends sites could prove even more numerous and

to issues of liability, coverage and other thus more costly than Superfund sites.

policy provisions. Litigation costs continue to escalate,

There is great uncertainty involved in particularly for toxic waste claims. A sub-

estimating our liabilities related to these stantial portion of the funds expended to

claims. First, the underlying liabilities of date by us has been for legal fees incurred in

the claimants are extremely diÇcult to the prolonged litigation of coverage issues.

estimate. At any given clean-up site, the Primary policies provide a limit on indem-

allocation of remediation costs among gov- nity payments but many do not on defense

ernmental authorities and the PRPs varies costs. This language in the policy sometimes

greatly. Second, diÅerent courts have ad- leads to the payment of defense costs in

dressed liability and coverage issues re- multiples of the policy limits.
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Reserves for asbestos and toxic waste coverage and liability by the courts and the

claims cannot be estimated with tradi- legislatures in the past and the possibilities

tional loss reserving techniques. We have of similar interpretations in the future,

established case reserves and expense particularly as they relate to asbestos and

reserves for costs of related litigation where toxic waste claims, as well as the uncer-

suÇcient information has been developed tainty in determining what scientiÑc stan-

to indicate the involvement of a speciÑc dards will be deemed acceptable for

insurance policy. In addition, IBNR measuring hazardous waste site clean-up,

reserves have been established to cover additional increases in loss reserves may

additional exposures on both known and emerge which would adversely aÅect re-

unasserted claims. These reserves are con- sults in future periods. The amount cannot

tinually reviewed and updated. Loss reserve reasonably be estimated at the present

increases relating to asbestos and toxic time.

waste claims were $182 million in 1995,
Investments and Liquidity

$115 million in 1994 and $1,076 million in
Investment income after taxes increased

1993. Excluding the $675 million increase
7% in 1995 compared with 4% in 1994.

in loss reserves related to the Fibreboard
Growth was primarily due to increases in

settlement and the reclassiÑcation of
invested assets, which reÖected strong cash

$300 million of general liability IBNR
Öow from operations over the period.

reserves as speciÑc reserves for this settle-
Growth was tempered in 1994 by the

ment, the increase in loss reserves relating
$538 million paid in December 1993 into

to asbestos and toxic waste claims was
an escrow account related to the

$101 million in 1993. Further increases in
Fibreboard settlement. Similarly, 1995

such reserves in 1996 and future years are
growth was tempered as a result of the

possible as legal and factual issues con-
February 1995 amendment to the 1993

cerning these claims are clariÑed, although
agreement between PaciÑc Indemnity and

the amounts cannot be reasonably
Continental Casualty, whereby an addi-

estimated.
tional $480 million of the Corporation's

Management believes that the aggre-
assets were designated as funds held for

gate loss reserves of the property and casu-
asbestos-related settlement. These assets

alty subsidiaries at December 31, 1995
accrue income for the beneÑt of partici-

were adequate to cover claims for losses pants in the class settlement of asbestos-
which had occurred, including both those related bodily injury claims against
known to us and those yet to be reported. Fibreboard.
In establishing such reserves, management The eÅective tax rate on our invest-
considers facts currently known and the ment income was 15.9% in 1995 compared
present state of the law and coverage liti- with 15.3% in 1994 and 14.7% in 1993.
gation. However, given the expansion of The eÅective tax rate increased in 1995
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The main objectives of the investment

portfolio of the property and casualty sub-

sidiaries are to maximize after-tax invest-

ment income and total investment returns

while minimizing credit risks as well as to

provide maximum support to the insur-

ance underwriting operations. Investment

strategies are developed based on many

factors including underwriting results and

our resulting tax position, Öuctuations in

interest rates and regulatory requirements.

New cash available for investment

was approximately $495 million in 1995

compared with $725 million in 1994 and

$480 million in 1993. The lower amount in

1995 was due to the designation of

$480 million of new cash as funds held for

asbestos-related settlement. The lower

amount in 1993 was due to the $538 mil-

DividendsTaxable
Interest

Tax Exempt Interest

1995

1994

1993

1992

1991 $398

Investment Income After Taxes 
(in millions of dollars)

Property & Casualty Insurance

$423

$455

$475

$507

$7,087

$7,767

$8,403

$8,939

$10,014

Invested Assets (in millions of dollars)

Short
Term
Investments

Equity
Securities

Taxable
Fixed
Maturities

Tax Exempt
Fixed Maturities

1995

1994

1993

1992

1991





lion paid in December into an escrow

account. In 1995, we invested new cash
and 1994 as the percentage of our invest- primarily in tax-exempt bonds. In 1994, we
ment income subject to tax has increased. invested new cash in taxable bonds and, to

Generally, premiums are received by a lesser extent, tax-exempt bonds while
our property and casualty subsidiaries reducing our equity security portfolio. In
months or even years before we pay the each year we tried to achieve the appropri-
losses under the policies purchased by such ate mix in our portfolio to balance both
premiums. These funds are used Ñrst to investment and tax strategies.
make current claim and expense payments. The property and casualty subsidiaries
The balance is invested to augment the have consistently invested in high quality
investment income generated by the ex- marketable securities. Taxable bonds in
isting portfolio. Historically, cash receipts our domestic portfolio comprise U.S. Trea-
from operations, consisting of insurance sury, government agency and corporate
premiums and investment income, have issues. Approximately 90% of these bonds
provided more than suÇcient funds to pay are either backed by the U.S. Government
losses, operating expenses and dividends to or rated AA or better by Moody's or
the Corporation. Standard & Poor's. Of the tax-exempt

bonds, practically all are rated A or better,
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with approximately half rated AAA. Taxa- with $14 million in 1994 and $62 million in

ble bonds have an average maturity of 1993. Premiums and policy charges were

7¥ years while tax-exempt bonds mature $623 million in 1995 compared with

on average in 9 years. Actual maturities $836 million in 1994 and $801 million

could diÅer from contractual maturities be- in 1993.

cause borrowers may have the right to call
Personal Insuranceor prepay obligations. Common stocks are
Earnings from personal insurance werehigh quality and readily marketable.
$37 million in 1995 compared withAt December 31, 1995, the property
$33 million in 1994 and $37 million inand casualty subsidiaries held foreign
1993. Earnings in 1995 beneÑted frominvestments of $1.4 billion supporting their
favorable mortality. The earnings decreaseinternational operations. Such foreign
in 1994 was primarily due to a decrease ininvestments have quality and maturity
the spread between interest earned on ourcharacteristics similar to our domestic port-
invested assets and interest credited to poli-folio. We reduce the risks relating to cur-
cyholders on interest-sensitive products.rency Öuctuations by maintaining

Premiums and policy chargesinvestments in those foreign currencies in
amounted to $311 million in 1995 com-which we transact business, with charac-
pared with $272 million in 1994 andteristics similar to the liabilities in those
$240 million in 1993. New sales of personalcurrencies.
insurance as measured by annualized pre-The property and casualty subsidiaries
miums were $112 million in 1995 com-maintain sufficient investments in highly
pared with $97 million in 1994 andliquid, short-term securities at all times to
$88 million in 1993.provide for immediate cash needs. At year-

Our strategy is to focus on the aÉuentend 1994, such investments were at a higher
individual interested in estate planning andthan normal level so that funds would be
wealth creation utilizing equity-linkedreadily available to pay amounts related to
products as well as on Ñnancial planning forthe Fibreboard settlement. Short-term secu-
business owners. Our ability to increaserities were reduced to a more normal level in
revenues has been enhanced through mar-1995 as the expected payout period for
keting initiatives conducted with our prop-Fibreboard related amounts has been ex-
erty and casualty producers.tended. The Corporation maintains bank

We have taken a number of steps tocredit facilities that are available to respond
increase operating eÇciencies in order toto unexpected cash demands.
improve the competitive position of our

Life and Health Insurance personal insurance business. We reduced

Life and health insurance earnings after Ñeld oÇce staÇng levels 55% by consoli-

taxes were $28 million in 1995 compared dating the 40 offices as of the beginning of
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ance results in 1995 and 1994 were ad-

versely aÅected by a high level of claims

resulting from the increased cost of medi-

cal services and the increased utilization

of those services. Results in 1995 beneÑted

from signiÑcant rate increases; this was

oÅset in part by the adverse eÅect of pre-

mium revenue decreasing at a greater rate

than the decrease in expenses.

Premiums were $312 million in 1995

compared with $564 million in 1994 and

$561 million in 1993. New group sales as

measured by annualized premiums were

$21 million in 1995 compared with

$52 million in 1994 and $323 million

in 1993.

Our group health business is concen-

trated in the New York and New Jersey

markets. In 1993, both states adopted leg-

islation which eliminated health insurance

underwriting, created community based

rating and limited pre-existing condition

exclusions for insured groups with fewer

than 50 covered lives. As a result, several

insurers reduced their market share in the

1995

1994

1993

1992

1991 $51

Income After Taxes (in millions of dollars)

Life & Health Insurance

$56

$62

$14

$28

$215

$189

$411

$149

$133

Sales in Annualized Premiums
(in millions of dollars)

PersonalGroup

1995

1994

1993

1992

1991

$41,502

$46,455

$54,282

$61,701

$66,661

Insurance in Force (in millions of dollars)

PersonalGroup

1995

1994

1993

1992

1991

small group health segment in New York

in 1993. We oÅered a competitive prod-
1993 into 14 as of year-end 1995 and also

uct and thus substantially increased our
consolidated three service centers into

sales in that market during 1993. The high
two. In addition, we streamlined our pro-

level of premium revenue in 1993 and the
ducer network and raised their minimum

Ñrst six months of 1994 reÖected the eÅect
production requirements.

of the signiÑcant increase in sales of new

Group Insurance policies during 1993. Due to the increased

Group insurance operations resulted in availability of alternative small group mar-

losses of $9 million in 1995 and $19 million kets in 1994 as well as our signiÑcant rate

in 1994 compared with earnings of increases in 1994 and 1995, many of the

$25 million in 1993. Group health insur- new policies written in 1993, which be-

came eligible for renewal in 1994, were not
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renewed. Due to this increase in non-

renewals, we expected the decline in pre-

mium revenue which occurred in 1995. In

response, we took a number of steps to

reduce our costs including the closing of

Ñeld oÇces and regional claim oÇces,

reducing staÇng levels by 65%.

Given the changes in our marketplace

and the continuation of the shift away

from traditional indemnity products to

Short
Term
Investments

Policy and
Mortgage
Loans

Equity
Securities

Fixed
Maturities

1995

1994

1993

1992

1991 $2,064

Invested Assets (in millions of dollars)

Life & Health Insurance

$2,209

$2,473

$2,560

$2,967

managed care alternatives, we anticipate

that traditional indemnity premium

revenue will continue to decline. In

response to this shift, we are oÅering was due to the reduced cash Öow from

managed care products through group insurance operations.

ChubbHealth, Inc., a health main-
In 1995, new cash was invested in

tenance organization.
mortgage-backed securities and, to a lesser

Because of the continuing adverse
extent, corporate bonds and U.S. Treasury

eÅects of the legislative changes and other
securities. In 1994, new cash was invested

health industry factors on our group health
primarily in mortgage-backed securities.

results, we are evaluating our future role
We invest predominantly in Ñxed-income

in the traditional indemnity and managed
securities with cash Öows and maturities

care markets.
which are consistent with life insurance

liability characteristics. ApproximatelyInvestments and Liquidity
95% are investment grade and more thanGross investment income increased 12% in
half are rated AAA. We maintain suÇcient1995 compared with 1% in 1994. Growth
funds in short-term securities to meet unu-in 1995 was primarily due to an increase in
sual needs for cash.invested assets. Premium receipts in ex-

The life and health subsidiaries heldcess of payments for beneÑts and expenses,
Ñxed maturity securities with a carryingtogether with investment income, continue
value of $2.7 billion and $2.2 billion atto provide new cash for investment. New

December 31, 1995 and 1994, respectively.cash amounted to $225 million in 1995

Corporate bonds comprised 39% and 47%compared with $140 million in 1994 and

of the portfolio at year-end 1995 and$225 million in 1993. The increase in new

1994, respectively, and mortgage-backedcash in 1995 was primarily due to in-

securities comprised 47% of the portfolio atcreases in deposits credited to policyholder

funds. The decrease in new cash in 1994 both year-ends. More than 90% of our

33



Real Estate
Real estate earnings after taxes were

$6 million in 1995 compared with a loss of

$2 million in both 1994 and 1993. Results

continue to be adversely aÅected by pro-

gressively higher portions of interest cost

being charged directly to expense rather

than being capitalized and by provisions

for possible uncollectible receivables re-

lated to mortgages. Results for 1995 bene-

1995

1994

1993

1992

1991 $25

Income (Loss) After Taxes
(in millions of dollars)

Real Estate

$10

($2)

($2)

$6

Ñted from an increase in earnings from

rental operations, residential sales and a

mortgage-backed securities holdings at land sale as well as from a decrease in the

December 31, 1995 and 1994 related to provision for uncollectible receivables. The

residential mortgages consisting of govern- provision for uncollectible receivables was

ment agency pass-through securities, gov- lower in 1995 than in the prior year de-

ernment agency collateralized mortgage spite an increase of $10 million to the

obligations (CMOs) and AAA rated non- allowance for uncollectible receivables

agency CMOs backed by government resulting from the initial application of

agency collateral or single family home Statement of Financial Accounting Stan-

mortgages. The majority of the CMOs are dards (SFAS) No. 114, Accounting by

actively traded in liquid markets and mar- Creditors for Impairment of a Loan, which

ket value information is readily available established new criteria for measuring

from broker/dealers. The notion of impair- impairment of a loan.

ment associated with default in paying Revenues were $288 million in 1995

principal is less applicable to residential compared with $205 million in 1994 and

CMOs. Other risks, most notably $161 million in 1993. Revenues in 1995 and

prepayment and extension risks, are moni- 1994 included higher levels of rental reve-

tored regularly. Changes in prepayment nues on owned properties. Revenues in

patterns can either lengthen or shorten the 1995 also included increased revenues from

expected timing of the principal repay- residential development and the land sale.

ments and thus the average life and the Our commercial real estate activities

eÅective yield of the security. We invest traditionally centered around acquiring

primarily in those classes of residential suburban, multi-site land parcels in loca-

CMO instruments that are subject to less tions considered prime for oÇce develop-

prepayment and extension risk and are ment and then developing the land in

therefore less volatile than other CMO progressive stages. In the late 1980s, we

instruments. expanded our activities to include a few
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metropolitan oÇce building projects. We markets and the resultant low rental rates

develop real estate properties ourselves will continue to cause pressure on the earn-

rather than through third party developers. ings of the real estate development

We are distinguished from most other real industry.

estate developers in that we coordinate all In consideration of the diÇcult envi-

phases of the development process from ronment in most real estate markets, we

concept to completion. Upon completion of have curtailed our construction of new of-

development, the properties may be either Ñce buildings in recent years. We have

owned and operated for our own account focused instead on leasing newly con-

or sold to third parties. We directly manage structed facilities and maintaining estab-

virtually all of the properties which we lished properties at high occupancy levels.

either own or have sold and retained inter- Current development activities consist al-

ests in through secured loans. most exclusively of preconstruction type

Our continuing investment interests eÅorts such as site planning, zoning and

in joint ventures generally consist of the similar activities. As a consequence, we

ownership and lease of the underlying land expect revenues from our commercial real

and the management and operation of the estate activities for the next several years

buildings. Our agreements with joint ven- to come from ongoing income from

tures to manage all aspects of the joint owned properties and from management

venture properties, including debt struc- and Ñnancing activities related to previ-

tures, tenant leasing, and building improve- ously sold properties or properties held in

ments and maintenance, have put us in a joint ventures. This does not preclude us

strong position to protect our ongoing from entertaining proposals to purchase

Ñnancial interests in the current diÇcult our properties when such oÅers provide a

real estate environment. reasonable return.

The commercial real estate industry Our vacancy rates are better than the

continues to suÅer from a reduced demand average in substantially all markets in

for real estate investment. For the past which we operate. We have been success-

several years, the supply of available oÇce ful in both retaining existing tenants and

space has exceeded the demand. Corpo- securing new ones and have not had signiÑ-

rate restructurings and downsizings have cant credit problems with tenants. During

exacerbated the problem as businesses con- 1995, a total of 2,320,000 square feet was

solidated their facilities, increasing the leased compared with 2,420,000 square

supply of available space. While selected feet in 1994 and 1,710,000 square feet in

real estate markets have experienced in- 1993. At December 31, 1995, we owned or

creases in leasing activity and some stabil- had interests in 10,450,000 square feet of

ity in rental rates, the oversupply of oÇce and industrial space. Our vacancy

available oÇce space for lease in most rate was 6% at year-end 1995 compared
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with 7% at year-end 1994 and 10% at year- the future. The time value of money is not

end 1993. The lower vacancy rates in 1995 considered in assessing revenues versus

and 1994 were due to our ability to mar- costs. Revenue assumptions take into ac-

ket space as it became available despite the count local market conditions with respect

diÇcult leasing market. to the lease-up periods, occupancy rates,

In certain markets, renewing leases in and current and future construction activ-

established buildings has been difficult as ity. There are uncertainties as to the actual

newly constructed space is available nearby realization of the assumptions relative to

at competitive rates. While we have exper- future revenues and future costs. However,

ienced significant leasing activity in recent management does not believe there is any

years, we have had to enter into multiple permanent impairment in real estate carry-

year leases at low market rental rates. This, ing values.

together with the lack of construction The Corporation will adopt SFAS

and transaction based activity, will place No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of

continued pressure on our real estate earn- Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived

ings for the next several years. Assets to be Disposed Of, in the Ñrst

quarter of 1996. SFAS No. 121 establishesUltimate realizable value for real
accounting standards for the impairmentestate properties is determined based on
of long-lived assets, certain identiÑableour ability to fully recover costs through a
intangibles, and goodwill related to thosefuture revenue stream. In many instances,
assets. The adoption of SFAS No. 121 isthere currently is not an active market for
not expected to have a signiÑcant impactcommercial real estate. Therefore, the
on net income in 1996. This pronounce-prices which might be realized if we were
ment is discussed further in Note (1) (p)forced to liquidate such properties on an
of the Notes to Consolidated Financialimmediate sale basis would probably be
Statements on page 51.less than the carrying values. In light of

current market conditions and our intent Loans receivable, which were issued

and ability to hold properties for the long in connection with our joint venture activi-

term, our primary focus is to ensure that we ties and other property sales, are primarily

can recover our costs through ownership purchase money mortgages. Such loans,

and operation rather than sale. which represent only 2% of consolidated

assets, are generally collateralized by build-We analyze both individual buildings
ings and land. We continuously evaluateand development sites on a continuing
the ultimate collectibility of such loans, ofbasis. Estimates are made of both addi-
which no signiÑcant amounts are due intional costs to be incurred to complete
the near term, and establish appropriatedevelopment where necessary and the reve-
reserves. Our agreements to manage allnues and operating costs of the property in
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aspects of the joint venture properties have Our Florida residential development

played a signiÑcant role in enabling us to activities continued during 1995. Construc-

control potential collectibility issues re- tion of a 171 unit oceanfront high-rise

lated to these receivables. The reserve for condominium project, commenced during

possible uncollectible receivables was 1994, is expected to be completed in 1996.

increased by charges against income of At year-end 1995, 156 units were under

$18 million in 1995, $29 million in 1994 contract. During 1995, construction of a

and $22 million in 1993, principally related 214 unit mid-rise condominium project was

to loans on selected properties with operat- completed. At year-end, 123 units were

ing income at levels which may not fully sold and 22 units were under contract.

meet debt service requirements. The During 1994, we began development

1995 charge includes the $10 million from of residential projects in northern

the initial application of SFAS No. 114. New Jersey. Our Ñrst project is a 178 unit

During 1995 and 1994, such reserve was townhome project which we expect to

reduced by writedowns aggregating $4 mil- complete in 1996. At year-end 1995,

lion and $10 million, respectively, related 131 units were sold and 19 units were

to speciÑc loans that are uncollectible. under contract. During 1995, we entered

Management believes the reserve of into a joint venture for the construction of

$88 million at December 31, 1995 ade- 84 townhomes.

quately reÖects the current condition of the Real estate activities are funded with

portfolio. If conditions in the real estate short-term credit instruments, primarily

market do not improve, however, addi- commercial paper, and debt issued by

tional reserves may be required. Chubb Capital Corporation as well as term

The fair value of these loans receiva- loans and mortgages. The weighted aver-

ble is estimated through the use of valua- age interest cost on short-term credit

tion techniques which consider current instruments approximated 6% in 1995 com-

yield factors applied to the lesser of the pared with 4¥% in 1994 and 3≤% in 1993.

value of the discounted future cash Öows of In 1995, the range of interest rates for

the loan or the discounted future net cash term loans was 6% to 9¥% and for mort-

Öows from the properties serving as the gages the range was 5% to 12%.

underlying collateral for the loan. The fair We expect to reÑnance, under similar

value of the loans represents a point-in- terms, most of the term loans and mort-

time estimate that is not relevant in pre- gages which become due in 1996. Cash

dicting future earnings or cash Öows related from operations combined with the ability

to such loans. At December 31, 1995, the to utilize the Corporation's borrowing

aggregate fair value of the loans was facilities will provide suÇcient funds

$405 million and the carrying value was for 1996.

$410 million.
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Corporate The Corporation has a revolving

The Corporation Ñled a shelf registration credit agreement with a group of banks that

statement which the Securities and Ex- provides for unsecured borrowings of up to

change Commission declared eÅective in $300 million. The agreement terminates

June 1995, under which up to $400 million on July 15, 1997 at which time any loans

of various types of securities may be issued then outstanding become payable. There

by the Corporation or Chubb Capital. No have been no borrowings under this agree-

securities have been issued under this ment. The Corporation had additional un-

registration. used lines of credit of approximately

$178 million at December 31, 1995.In February 1994, the Board of Direc-

Investment income earned on corpo-tors authorized the repurchase of up to

rate invested assets and interest and other5,000,000 shares of common stock. During

expenses not allocable to the operating sub-1994, the Corporation repurchased

sidiaries are reÖected in the corporate seg-approximately 1,000,000 shares in open-

ment. Corporate income after taxes wasmarket transactions at a cost of

$15 million in 1995, $8 million in 1994 and$72 million.

$14 million in 1993.The Corporation has outstanding

$120 million of unsecured 8∂% notes due Investment Gains and Losses
in 1999. In each of the years 1996 through Net investment gains were realized by the
1998, the Corporation will pay as a Corporation and its insurance subsidiaries
mandatory sinking fund an amount suÇ- in 1995, 1994 and 1993. Such gains
cient to redeem $30 million of principal. before taxes consisted of the following:

Chubb Capital has outstanding in the
1995 1994 1993

Eurodollar market $250 million of 6% sub- (in millions)

ordinated notes due in 1998. The notes Equity securities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $100 $125 $ 60

are guaranteed by the Corporation and Fixed maturities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 31 (62) 173

$131 $ 63 $233exchangeable into its common stock. The

proceeds have been used to support our real
In 1995 and 1994, a redistribution of

estate operations.
invested assets from equity securities to

Chubb Capital has outstanding Ñxed maturities resulted in signiÑcant re-
$150 million of 6% notes due in 1998 and alized investment gains. A restructuring of
$100 million of 6∑% notes due in 2003. the equity security portfolio begun in 1992
The notes are unsecured and are guaran- resulted in signiÑcant realized investment
teed by the Corporation. A substantial gains in 1993.
portion of the proceeds has been used A primary reason for the sale of Ñxed
to support our real estate operations. maturities in each of the last three years
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has been to improve our after-tax portfolio At December 31, 1995 and 1994, in

return without sacriÑcing quality, where accordance with the requirements of SFAS

market opportunities have existed to do so. No. 115, Ñxed maturities classiÑed as

The substantial gains realized in 1993 held-to-maturity were carried at amortized

were due to the sale of Ñxed maturities in cost while Ñxed maturities classiÑed as

the Ñrst half of the year as part of the available-for-sale were carried at market

realignment of our portfolio and in the value. At December 31, 1993, all Ñxed

latter part of the year to realize gains to maturities were carried at amortized cost.

partially oÅset the reduction in statutory The unrealized appreciation or depre-

surplus of our property and casualty subsid- ciation of investments carried at market

iaries resulting from the decrease in in- value, which includes equity securities and

come related to the Fibreboard settlement. Ñxed maturities classiÑed as available-for-

Fixed maturities which the Corpora- sale, is reÖected in a separate component of

tion and its insurance subsidiaries have the shareholders' equity, net of applicable de-

ability and intent to hold to maturity are ferred income tax.

classiÑed as held-to-maturity. The remain- The unrealized market appreciation

ing Ñxed maturities, which may be sold before tax of those Ñxed maturities carried

prior to maturity to support our investment at amortized cost was $209 million,

strategies, such as in response to changes $13 million and $736 million at

in interest rates and the yield curve or to December 31, 1995, 1994 and 1993, re-

maximize after-tax returns, are classiÑed spectively. Such unrealized appreciation

as available-for-sale. was not reÖected in the consolidated Ñnan-

Effective January 1, 1994, the Corpo- cial statements. The changes in unrealized

ration adopted SFAS No. 115, Accounting market appreciation of Ñxed maturities

for Certain Investments in Debt and were due to Öuctuations in interest rates.

Equity Securities. SFAS No. 115 estab-

lished more stringent criteria for classifying Federal Income Taxes
fixed maturity securities as held-to-matur- The Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act

ity. Thus, upon adopting SFAS No. 115, of 1993, enacted in August 1993, increased

the Corporation reclassified $4.2 billion of the federal corporate tax rate from 34% to

fixed maturities as available-for-sale which 35%, retroactive to January 1, 1993. In

were previously classified as held-to-matur- addition to applying the higher tax rate to

ity. At December 31, 1995, 27% of our pre-tax income for 1993, the federal in-

fixed maturity portfolio was classified as come tax provision for 1993 reÖects the

held-to-maturity compared with 35% at eÅect of the rate increase on deferred in-

December 31, 1994 and 79% at Decem- come tax assets and liabilities. This eÅect

ber 31, 1993. was a tax beneÑt of approximately $5 mil-
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lion. The eÅect on the various business Changes in Accounting Principles
segments was as follows: In 1995, the Corporation adopted SFAS

Tax Provision
No. 114, Accounting by Creditors for(BeneÑt)

(in millions) Impairment of a Loan. In 1994, the Corpo-
Property and casualty insurance

ration adopted SFAS No. 115, Accounting
Underwriting ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(11)

for Certain Investments in Debt and Eq-Investment income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2
Life and health insurance ÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1 uity Securities. In 1993, the Corporation
Real estate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3 adopted SFAS No. 106, Employers'

In 1993, life and health insurance Accounting for Postretirement BeneÑts
income after taxes included a beneÑt of Other Than Pensions, and SFAS No. 109,
$5 million resulting from a reversal of in- Accounting for Income Taxes. These pro-
come tax reserves based on a settlement of nouncements and their eÅect on the con-
prior years' taxes. solidated Ñnancial statements are discussed

in Note (2) of the Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements on page 51.
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Financial Reporting Responsibility

Management is responsible for the audit its Ñnancial statements and express

integrity of the Ñnancial information their opinion thereon.  They have full

included in this annual report and for access to each member of management in

ascertaining that such information presents conducting their audits.  Such audits are

fairly the Ñnancial position and operating conducted in accordance with generally

results of the Corporation.  The accepted auditing standards and include a

accompanying consolidated Ñnancial review and evaluation of the system of

statements have been prepared in internal accounting controls, tests of the

conformity with generally accepted accounting records and other auditing

accounting principles.  Such statements procedures they consider necessary to

include informed estimates and judgments express their opinion on the consolidated

of management for those transactions that Ñnancial statements.

are not yet complete or for which the The Corporation's accounting policies

ultimate eÅects cannot be precisely and internal controls are under the general

determined.  Financial information oversight of the Board of Directors acting

presented elsewhere in this annual report is through its Audit Committee.  This

consistent with that in the Ñnancial Committee is composed entirely of

statements. Directors who are not officers or employees

The accounting systems and internal of the Corporation.  The Committee meets

accounting controls of the Corporation are regularly with management, the internal

designed to provide reasonable assurance auditors and the independent auditors to

that assets are safeguarded against losses review the accounting principles and

from unauthorized use or disposition, that practices employed by the Corporation and

transactions are executed in accordance to discuss auditing, internal control and

with management's authorization and that financial reporting matters.  Both the

the Ñnancial records are reliable for internal and independent auditors have, at

preparing Ñnancial statements and all times, unrestricted access to the Audit

maintaining accountability for assets. Committee, without members of

QualiÑed personnel throughout the management present, to discuss the results

organization maintain and monitor these of their audits, their evaluations of the

internal accounting controls on an ongoing adequacy of the Corporation's internal

basis.  In addition, the Corporation's accounting controls and the quality of the

Internal Audit Department systematically Corporation's financial reporting, and any

reviews these controls, evaluates their other matter that they believe should be

adequacy and eÅectiveness and reports brought to the attention of the Committee.

thereon.

The Corporation engages Ernst &

Young LLP as independent auditors to
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Ten Year Financial Summary
(in thousands except for per share amounts)

FOR THE YEAR 1995 1994 1993 1992

Revenues

Property and Casualty Insurance
Premiums Earned ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 4,147,162 $ 3,776,283 $ 3,504,838 (a) $ 3,163,288
Investment Income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 613,242 570,531 541,749 501,140

Life and Health Insurance
Premiums and Policy Charges ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 622,937 836,293 801,236 689,173
Investment Income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 232,950 208,745 205,891 192,748

Real EstateÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 287,795 204,849 160,650 149,945
Corporate Investment Income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 54,445 49,405 52,706 57,176
Realized Investment Gains (Losses)ÏÏÏ 130,660 63,429 232,638 187,349

Total Revenues ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 6,089,191 5,709,535 5,499,708 4,940,819

Components of Net Income*

Property and Casualty Insurance
Underwriting Income (Loss) (b) ÏÏÏÏ 55,654 (7,811) (337,492)(c) (15,352)
Investment Income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 507,187 474,981 455,409 422,755

Life and Health Insurance ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 28,040 14,503 62,517 56,221
Real Estate Income (Loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 6,010 (e) (2,037) (2,193) 10,050
Corporate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 14,809 7,661 14,357 19,794
Realized Investment Gains (Losses)ÏÏÏ 84,928 41,172 151,619 123,631

Income Before Cumulative EÅect
of Changes in Accounting
Principles ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 696,628 528,469 344,217 617,099

Per Share (b) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7.85 (e) 5.95 3.91 (c) 6.96
Net Income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 696,628 528,469 324,217 (f) 617,099

Per Share ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7.85 5.95 3.69 (f) 6.96
Dividends Declared on Common Stock ÏÏ 170,665 161,055 150,784 139,612

Per Share ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1.96 1.84 1.72 1.60
Change in Unrealized Appreciation or

Depreciation of Investments, Net ÏÏÏÏÏ 470,233 (487,951) 46,534 (82,082)

AT YEAR END

Total AssetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 22,996,525 20,723,055 19,436,870 17,559,182
Invested Assets

Property and Casualty InsuranceÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10,013,557 8,938,752 8,403,141 7,767,462
Life and Health Insurance ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2,967,259 2,560,184 2,473,253 2,208,803
Corporate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 906,597 879,475 965,715 955,828

Property and Casualty Unpaid ClaimsÏÏÏ 9,588,141 8,913,220 8,235,442 7,220,919
Life and Health Policy Liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2,943,138 2,659,583 2,446,620 2,193,486
Long Term Debt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,156,044 1,285,614 1,273,830 1,072,841
Shareholders' EquityÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5,262,729 4,247,029 4,196,129 3,954,402

Per Common ShareÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 60.28 48.92 47.84 45.18

* The federal and foreign income tax provided for each component of net income represents its allocated portion of the consolidated provision.

Amounts for 1995 and 1994 reÖect the accounting changes prescribed by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 115, Accounting for
Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities. Restatement of prior year amounts was not permitted. The change in unrealized appreciation or
depreciation of investments for 1994 excludes the increase in unrealized appreciation, as of January 1, 1994, of $220,519,000 resulting from the
change in accounting principle.
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1991 1990 1989 1988 1987 1986

$ 3,037,168 $ 2,836,135 $ 2,693,553 $ 2,705,560 $ 2,615,866 $2,250,758
476,984 463,413 426,267 364,126 266,230 216,558

634,016 561,961 496,405 426,992 384,108 323,293
177,654 171,570 159,828 144,264 124,640 104,934
140,957 174,846 221,338 155,170 143,381 181,184
46,400 39,555 25,167 17,806 17,531 18,329
65,718 46,317 46,942 (17,987) (22,561) 97,710

4,578,897 4,293,797 4,069,500 3,795,931 3,529,195 3,192,766

18,594 20,709 (d) (25,040) 15,818 62,394 (29,837)
397,595 371,351 330,096 290,647 226,546 177,146
51,119 45,081 42,103 31,458 23,889 36,573
25,007 40,015 42,021 40,018 36,079 32,756
16,325 14,760 705 (5,357) (4,229) (2,203)
43,344 30,193 30,932 (12,959) (14,619) 53,506

551,984 522,109 420,817 359,625 330,060 267,941

6.32 6.07 (d) 4.91 4.27 3.97 3.53
551,984 522,109 420,817 359,625 330,060 267,941

6.32 6.07 4.91 4.27 3.97 3.53
127,757 109,136 96,515 87,766 71,443 60,485

1.48 1.32 1.16 1.08 .89 .80

12,163 (19,425) 70,330 29,815 12,294 12,878

16,163,605 14,510,750 13,384,850 11,507,145 10,167,250 8,486,643

7,086,572 6,297,825 5,793,656 5,153,027 4,519,268 3,574,360
2,063,518 1,928,687 1,752,532 1,582,962 1,401,553 1,127,695

840,291 688,380 647,817 366,237 256,397 295,617
6,591,305 6,016,396 5,605,006 4,585,848 3,888,485 3,069,083
2,072,727 1,959,568 1,806,325 1,645,195 1,430,119 1,067,290
1,053,550 820,825 612,874 362,779 325,049 391,801
3,541,605 2,882,639 2,603,739 2,238,447 1,937,033 1,559,138

40.74 35.19 30.84 27.54 23.85 20.06
(a) Premiums earned have been increased by a $125,000,000 return premium to the Corporation's property and casualty insurance subsidiaries

related to the commutation of a medical malpractice reinsurance agreement.
(b) Net income has been increased by tax beneÑts of $6,400,000 or $.07 per share in 1992, $7,200,000 or $.08 per share in 1991, $10,800,000 or

$.12 per share in 1990, $19,200,000 or $.22 per share in 1989, $20,400,000 or $.24 per share in 1988 and $28,800,000 or $.34 per share in 1987
relating to the exclusion from taxable income of a portion of the ""fresh start'' discount on property and casualty unpaid claims as a result of the
Tax Reform Act of 1986.

(c) Net income has been reduced by a net charge of $357,500,000 or $3.95 per share for the after-tax eÅects of a $675,000,000 increase in unpaid
claims related to an agreement for the settlement of asbestos-related litigation and the $125,000,000 return premium related to
the commutation of a medical malpractice reinsurance agreement.

(d) Net income has been increased by the one-time beneÑt of a $14,000,000 or $.16 per share elimination of deferred income taxes relating to
estimated property and casualty salvage and subrogation recoverable as a result of the Revenue Reconciliation Act of 1990.

(e) Net income has been reduced by a charge of $6,500,000 or $.07 per share for the after-tax eÅect of a $10,000,000 increase to the allowance for
uncollectible receivables resulting from the initial application of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 114, Accounting by
Creditors for Impairment of a Loan.

(f) Net income has been reduced by a one-time charge of $20,000,000 or $.22 per share for the cumulative eÅect of changes in accounting
principles resulting from the Corporation's adoption of Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No. 106, Employers' Accounting for
Postretirement BeneÑts Other Than Pensions, and No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes.
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The Chubb Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Income

In Thousands
Years Ended December 31

1995 1994 1993Revenues

Premiums Earned and Policy Charges (Notes 12 and 13) ÏÏ $4,770,099 $4,612,576 $4,306,074

Investment Income (Note 3) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 900,637 828,681 800,346

Real Estate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 287,795 204,849 160,650

Realized Investment Gains (Note 3)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 130,660 63,429 232,638

TOTAL REVENUES ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 6,089,191 5,709,535 5,499,708

BeneÑts, Claims and Expenses

Insurance Claims and Policyholders' BeneÑts (Notes 13
and 14)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3,219,200 3,271,564 3,548,520

Amortization of Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs (Note 4) ÏÏ 1,198,400 1,113,495 1,012,105

Other Insurance Operating Costs and Expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 447,170 423,389 395,605

Real Estate Cost of Sales and Expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 280,099 210,799 158,599

Investment ExpensesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 14,747 14,047 11,091

Corporate ExpensesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 29,504 36,877 29,296

TOTAL BENEFITS, CLAIMS AND EXPENSESÏÏÏ 5,189,120 5,070,171 5,155,216

INCOME BEFORE FEDERAL AND FOREIGN
INCOME TAX ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 900,071 639,364 344,492

Federal and Foreign Income Tax (Note 8)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 203,443 110,895 275

INCOME BEFORE CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES ÏÏÏ 696,628 528,469 344,217

Cumulative EÅect of Changes in Accounting Principles,

Net of Tax (Note 2) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì (20,000)

NET INCOME ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 696,628 $ 528,469 $ 324,217

Per Share Data (Notes 1 and 18)

Income Before Cumulative EÅect of Changes in
Accounting Principles ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 7.85 $ 5.95 $ 3.91

Cumulative EÅect of Changes in Accounting Principles ÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì (.22)

Net Income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 7.85 $ 5.95 $ 3.69

See accompanying notes.
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The Chubb Corporation
Consolidated Balance Sheets

In Thousands
December 31

1995 1994Assets
Invested Assets (Note 3)

Short Term Investments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 484,439 $ 810,873
Fixed Maturities

Held-to-Maturity
Tax Exempt (market $3,004,775 and $3,177,097)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2,826,737 3,149,479
Taxable (market $433,883 and $604,077) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 402,488 619,095

Available-for-Sale
Tax Exempt (cost $3,607,925 and $2,524,446) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3,860,630 2,530,186
Taxable (cost $5,282,675 and $4,604,182) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5,512,955 4,423,946

Equity Securities (cost $493,416 and $609,535) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 587,825 642,153
Policy and Mortgage Loans ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 212,339 202,679

TOTAL INVESTED ASSETSÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 13,887,413 12,378,411

Cash (Note 7) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 11,950 5,599
Accrued Investment IncomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 245,319 215,703
Premiums Receivable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 872,912 787,177
Reinsurance Recoverable on Property and Casualty Unpaid Claims (Note 12) ÏÏ 1,973,666 1,980,340
Prepaid Reinsurance Premiums ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 484,358 455,051
Funds Held for Asbestos-Related Settlement (Note 14) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,038,149 558,141
Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs (Note 4)

Property and Casualty Insurance ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 558,676 529,453
Life and Health Insurance ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 612,709 606,493

Real Estate Assets (Notes 5 and 7) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,742,580 1,740,287
Deferred Income Tax (Note 8)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 159,674 314,720
Other AssetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,409,119 1,151,680

TOTAL ASSETS ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $22,996,525 $20,723,055

Liabilities
Property and Casualty Unpaid Claims (Note 14) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 9,588,141 $ 8,913,220
Life and Health Policy Liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2,943,138 2,659,583
Unearned Premiums ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2,570,682 2,382,545
Short Term Debt (Note 7) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 187,600 153,340
Long Term Debt (Note 7)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,156,044 1,285,614
Dividend Payable to Shareholders ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 42,741 40,035
Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,245,450 1,041,689

TOTAL LIABILITIES ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 17,733,796 16,476,026

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities (Notes 11 and 14)

Shareholders' Equity (Notes 10, 17 and 18)
Preferred Stock Ì Authorized 4,000,000 Shares;

$1 Par Value; Issued Ì None ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì
Common Stock Ì Authorized 300,000,000 Shares;

$1 Par Value; Issued 87,819,355 and 87,798,286 SharesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 87,819 87,798
Paid-In Surplus ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 778,239 786,596
Retained Earnings ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4,206,517 3,680,554
Foreign Currency Translation Gains (Losses), Net of Income Tax ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (3,433) 9,766
Unrealized Appreciation (Depreciation) of Investments, Net (Note 3) ÏÏÏÏ 345,894 (124,339)
Receivable from Employee Stock Ownership Plan ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (114,998) (122,999)
Treasury Stock, at Cost Ì 518,468 and 977,580 Shares ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (37,309) (70,347)

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5,262,729 4,247,029

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $22,996,525 $20,723,055

See accompanying notes.

45



The Chubb Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity

In Thousands

Years Ended December 31

1995 1994 1993

Preferred Stock

Balance, Beginning and End of Year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ Ì $ Ì $ Ì

Common Stock

Balance, Beginning of Year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 87,798 87,709 87,520
Shares Issued under Option and Incentive Plans ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 21 89 189

Balance, End of YearÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 87,819 87,798 87,709

Paid-In Surplus

Balance, Beginning of Year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 786,596 782,186 772,815
Additions (Reductions) Resulting from Shares Issued

under Option and Incentive PlansÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (8,357) 4,410 9,371

Balance, End of YearÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 778,239 786,596 782,186

Retained Earnings

Balance, Beginning of Year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3,680,554 3,313,140 3,139,707
Net Income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 696,628 528,469 324,217
Dividends Declared (per share $1.96, $1.84 and $1.72) ÏÏÏÏÏÏ (170,665) (161,055) (150,784)

Balance, End of YearÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4,206,517 3,680,554 3,313,140

Foreign Currency Translation Gains (Losses)

Balance, Beginning of Year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 9,766 327 (5,164)
Change During Year, Net of Income Tax (Note 16) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (13,199) 9,439 5,491

Balance, End of YearÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (3,433) 9,766 327

Unrealized Appreciation (Depreciation) of Investments

Balance, Beginning of Year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (124,339) 143,093 96,559
Cumulative EÅect, as of January 1, 1994, of Change in

Accounting Principle, Net (Note 2) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 220,519 Ì
Change During Year, Net (Note 3) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 470,233 (487,951) 46,534

Balance, End of YearÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 345,894 (124,339) 143,093

Receivable from Employee Stock Ownership Plan

Balance, Beginning of Year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (122,999) (130,326) (137,035)
Principal RepaymentsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 8,001 7,327 6,709

Balance, End of YearÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (114,998) (122,999) (130,326)

Treasury Stock, at Cost

Balance, Beginning of Year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (70,347) Ì Ì
Repurchase of SharesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì (72,052) Ì
Shares Issued under Option and Incentive Plans ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 33,038 Ì Ì
Shares Issued Ì OtherÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 1,705 Ì

Balance, End of YearÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (37,309) (70,347) Ì

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITYÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $5,262,729 $4,247,029 $4,196,129

See accompanying notes.
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The Chubb Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

In Thousands

Years Ended December 31

1995 1994 1993

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net Income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 696,628 $ 528,469 $ 324,217
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities
Increase in Property and Casualty Unpaid Claims, Net ÏÏ 681,595 482,834 1,182,432
Increase (Decrease) in Life and Health Policy

Liabilities, NetÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (24,163) (10,769) 55,841
Increase in Unearned Premiums, Net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 158,830 174,926 141,457
Increase in Premiums Receivable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (85,735) (67,055) (49,329)
Increase in Funds Held for Asbestos-Related Settlement ÏÏ (480,008) (19,969) (538,172)
Increase in Medical Malpractice Reinsurance Related

Receivable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (66,194) Ì (125,000)
Increase in Deferred Policy Acquisition CostsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (107,671) (96,718) (82,977)
Deferred Income Tax Credit ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (25,023) (18,588) (116,720)
Realized Investment Gains ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (130,660) (63,429) (232,638)
Cumulative Effect of Changes in Accounting Principles ÏÏ Ì Ì 20,000
Other, Net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 96,693 (13,026) 116,410

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING
ACTIVITIESÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 714,292 896,675 695,521

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Proceeds from Sales of Fixed MaturitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4,552,855 2,906,535 4,051,247
Proceeds from Maturities of Fixed Maturities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 782,566 577,131 671,229
Proceeds from Sales of Equity Securities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 411,993 623,482 298,790
Purchases of Fixed Maturities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (6,524,918) (4,265,835) (5,005,539)
Purchases of Equity Securities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (195,950) (397,749) (357,254)
Decrease (Increase) in Short Term Investments, NetÏÏÏÏÏÏ 326,434 (279,591) (268,077)
Additions to Real Estate Assets, Net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (34,305) (43,216) (69,552)
Purchases of Fixed AssetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (75,388) (71,778) (47,332)
Other, Net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (20,766) (9,009) (27,436)

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES ÏÏ (777,479) (960,030) (753,924)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Deposits Credited to Policyholder Funds ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 442,934 336,765 295,189
Withdrawals from Policyholder Funds ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (138,071) (122,502) (108,116)
Proceeds from Issuance of Long Term Debt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 173,900 33,225 255,045
Repayment of Long Term Debt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (303,470) (21,441) (55,928)
Increase (Decrease) in Short Term Debt, Net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 34,260 58,500 (193,668)
Dividends Paid to ShareholdersÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (167,959) (158,735) (148,070)
Repurchase of Shares ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì (72,052) Ì
Other, Net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 27,944 10,608 11,793

NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING
ACTIVITIESÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 69,538 64,368 56,245

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 6,351 1,013 (2,158)
Cash at Beginning of YearÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5,599 4,586 6,744

CASH AT END OF YEARÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 11,950 $ 5,599 $ 4,586

Supplemental Cash Flow Information
Cash Paid During the Year for

Interest (Net of Amounts Capitalized) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 86,041 $ 78,272 $ 56,156
Federal and Foreign Income TaxesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 218,446 135,187 126,955

See accompanying notes.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(1) Summary of SigniÑcant Accounting Policies Realized gains and losses on the sale of investments are
determined on the basis of the cost of the speciÑc invest-

(a) Basis of Presentation ments sold and are credited or charged to income. Un-
realized appreciation or depreciation of investmentsThe accompanying consolidated Ñnancial statements
carried at market value, net of applicable deferred incomehave been prepared in accordance with generally accepted
tax, is excluded from income and credited or chargedaccounting principles and include the accounts of The
directly to a separate component of shareholders' equity.Chubb Corporation (Corporation) and its property and

casualty insurance, life and health insurance and real (c) Premium Revenues and Related Expenses
estate subsidiaries. SigniÑcant intercompany transactions

Property and casualty insurance premiums are earnedhave been eliminated in consolidation.
on a monthly pro rata basis over the terms of the policies.

The consolidated Ñnancial statements reÖect estimates Revenues include estimates of audit premiums and pre-
and judgments made by management which aÅect the miums on retrospectively rated policies. Unearned premi-
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of ums represent the portion of premiums written applicable
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the Ñnancial to the unexpired terms of policies in force. Acquisition
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and costs, consisting of commissions, premium taxes and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could other costs that vary with and are primarily related to the
diÅer from those estimates. production of business, are deferred by major product

groups and amortized over the period in which the relatedIn 1995, the Corporation adopted Statement of Finan-
premiums are earned.cial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 114, Accounting

by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan. SFAS No. 114 Receipts from universal life and other interest-sensitive
may not be retroactively applied to prior years' Ñnancial life insurance contracts are not reported as
statements; accordingly, the 1994 and 1993 consolidated revenues, but established as policyholder account bal-
Ñnancial statements have not been restated for this ac- ances. Revenues for these contracts consist of policy
counting change. This accounting change and the ac- charges assessed against the policyholder account bal-
counting changes adopted in 1994 and 1993 are further ances for the cost of insurance, policy administration and
described in Note (2). surrenders. BeneÑts include claims incurred in excess of

the related policyholder account balances and interest
Certain amounts in the Ñnancial statements for prior

credited to the policyholder account balances.
years have been reclassiÑed to conform with the 1995

Premiums for traditional life insurance contracts underpresentation.
which the premiums and beneÑts are Ñxed and guaran-

(b) Investments teed are recognized as revenues when due. BeneÑts and
expenses are provided against such revenues so as toShort term investments, which have an original matur-
recognize proÑts over the estimated lives of the contracts.ity of one year or less, are carried at amortized cost.
This is accomplished by means of the provision for future

Fixed maturities, which include bonds and redeemable policy beneÑts and the deferral and subsequent amortiza-
preferred stocks, are purchased to support the investment tion of acquisition costs.
strategies of the Corporation and its insurance subsidiaries.

Health insurance premiums are earned on a monthlyThese strategies are developed based on many factors
pro rata basis over the terms of the policies.including rate of return, maturity, credit risk, tax considera-

tions and regulatory requirements. Those fixed maturities Certain costs of acquiring life insurance contracts,
which the Corporation and its insurance subsidiaries have principally commissions, underwriting costs and certain
the ability and positive intent to hold to maturity are variable agency costs, are deferred. Deferred policy acqui-
classified as held-to-maturity and carried at amortized sition costs for universal life and other interest-sensitive
cost. Fixed maturities which may be sold prior to maturity life insurance contracts are amortized over the lives of the
to support the investment strategies of the Corporation and contracts in relation to the present value of estimated
its insurance subsidiaries are classified as available-for-sale gross proÑts expected to be realized. Beginning in 1994,
and carried at market value as of the balance sheet date. deferred policy acquisition costs related to such contracts

are also adjusted to reÖect the eÅects that unrealizedEquity securities, which include common stocks and
gains or losses on investments classiÑed as available-for-non-redeemable preferred stocks, are carried at market
sale would have had on the present value of estimatedvalue as of the balance sheet date.
gross proÑts had such gains or losses actually been real-

Policy and mortgage loans of the insurance subsidiaries ized. This adjustment is excluded from income and
are carried at unpaid principal balances. charged or credited directly to the unrealized appreciation
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or depreciation of investments component of sharehold- Prepaid reinsurance premiums represent the portion of
ers' equity, net of applicable deferred income tax. De- property and casualty insurance premiums ceded to rein-
ferred policy acquisition costs for traditional life insurance surers applicable to the unexpired terms of the reinsur-
contracts are amortized over the premium payment pe- ance contracts in force.
riod of the related contracts using assumptions consistent

Commissions received related to reinsurance premiumswith those used in computing policy liabilities.
ceded are considered in determining net acquisition costs

Deferred policy acquisition costs for all insurance oper- eligible for deferral.
ations are reviewed to determine that they do not exceed

Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid claims and policyrecoverable amounts, after considering anticipated invest-
liabilities represent estimates of the portion of such liabili-ment income.
ties that will be recovered from reinsurers, determined in

(d) Property and Casualty Unpaid Claims a manner consistent with the liabilities associated with the
reinsured policies.Liabilities for unpaid claims include the accumulation

of individual case estimates for claims reported and esti-
(g) Funds Held for Asbestos-Related Settlementmates of unreported claims and claim settlement

expenses less estimates of anticipated salvage and subro- Funds held for asbestos-related settlement are assets of
gation recoveries. Estimates are based upon past claim the Corporation's property and casualty insurance subsidi-
experience modiÑed for current trends as well as prevail- aries that accrue income for the beneÑt of participants in
ing economic, legal and social conditions. Such estimates the class settlement of asbestos-related bodily injury
are continually reviewed and updated. Any resulting ad- claims against Fibreboard Corporation (see Note (14)).
justments are reÖected in current operating results.

(h) Real Estate(e) Life and Health Policy Liabilities
Real estate properties are carried at cost and includeLiabilities for universal life and other interest-sensitive

real estate taxes, interest and other carrying costs incurredlife insurance contracts represent the policyholder ac-
prior to completion of the assets for their intended use.count balances before surrender charges. Interest credit-
Costs incurred during the initial leasing of income pro-ing rates ranged from 3¥% to 8% in 1995.
ducing properties are capitalized until the project is sub-

Liabilities for traditional life insurance contracts consist stantially complete, subject to a maximum time period
of future policy beneÑts which are computed by the net subsequent to completion of major construction activity.
level premium method based upon estimated future in-

The carrying value of real estate properties does notvestment yield, expected mortality and estimated with-
exceed their ultimate realizable value. Impairment woulddrawals. Assumptions generally vary by plan, age at issue
be recognized to the extent ultimate realizable value for aand year of issue. Interest rate assumptions ranged from
property was less than its carrying value. Ultimate realiza-3% to 9% in 1995. Mortality is calculated principally on
ble value is the undiscounted expected future net cashan experience multiple applied to select and ultimate
Öows from the property.tables in common usage in the industry. Estimated with-

drawals are determined principally based on industry
Depreciation of real estate properties is calculatedtables.

using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
Liabilities for health insurance include estimates for lives of the properties.

claims reported and for claims incurred but not reported.
Real estate mortgages and notes receivable are carried

(f) Reinsurance at unpaid principal balances less an allowance for uncol-
lectible amounts.In the ordinary course of business, the Corporation's

insurance subsidiaries assume and cede reinsurance with The equity method of accounting is used for joint
other insurance companies and are members of various ventures in which the Corporation's real estate subsidiar-
pools and associations. These arrangements provide ies own an interest of less than 50%.
greater diversiÑcation of business and minimize the maxi-
mum net loss potential arising from large risks. A large Rental revenues are recognized on a straight-line basis
portion of the reinsurance is eÅected under contracts over the term of the lease. ProÑts on land, townhome and
known as treaties and in some instances by negotiation on commercial building sales are recognized at closing, sub-
individual risks. Certain of these arrangements consist of ject to compliance with applicable accounting guidelines.
excess of loss and catastrophe contracts which protect ProÑts on high-rise condominium unit sales are recog-
against losses over stipulated amounts arising from any nized using the percentage of completion method, subject
one occurrence or event. Reinsurance contracts do not to achievement of a minimum level of unit sales. ProÑts
relieve the Corporation's insurance subsidiaries of their on construction contracts are recognized using the per-
obligation to the policyholders. centage of completion method.
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The methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair(i) Property and Equipment
value of Ñnancial instruments are as follows:

Property and equipment used in operations are carried
at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is (i) The carrying value of short term investments
calculated using the straight-line method over the esti- approximates fair value due to the short maturities of
mated useful lives of the assets. these investments.

(j) Goodwill (ii) Fair values of Ñxed maturities with active mar-
kets are based on quoted market prices. For ÑxedGoodwill, which represents the excess of the purchase
maturities that trade in less active markets, fair valuesprice over the fair value of net assets of subsidiaries
are obtained from independent pricing services. Fairacquired, is amortized using the straight-line method over
values of Ñxed maturities are principally a function ofperiods not exceeding 40 years. Total unamortized good-
current interest rates. Care should be used in evaluatingwill included in other assets was $74,591,000 and
the signiÑcance of these estimated market values.$72,041,000 at December 31, 1995 and 1994, respectively.

(iii) Fair values of equity securities are based on(k) Income Taxes
quoted market prices.

The Corporation and its domestic subsidiaries Ñle a
(iv) Fair values of policy and mortgage loans of theconsolidated federal income tax return.

insurance subsidiaries are estimated using discounted
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recog- cash Öow analyses and approximate the carrying values.

nized for the expected future tax eÅects attributable to
temporary diÅerences between the Ñnancial reporting and (v) Fair values of real estate mortgages and notes
tax bases of assets and liabilities, based on enacted tax receivable are estimated individually as the lesser
rates and other provisions of tax law. The eÅect of a of (1) the value of the discounted future cash Öows of
change in tax laws or rates is recognized in income in the the loan or (2) the estimated value of the collateral,
period in which such change is enacted. which is based on the discounted future net cash Öows

from such collateral. The cash Öows are discounted atU. S. federal income taxes are accrued on undistributed
rates based on a U.S. Treasury security with a maturityearnings of foreign subsidiaries.
similar to the loan, adjusted for credit risk.

(l) Foreign Exchange
(vi) The carrying value of short term debt approxi-

Assets and liabilities relating to foreign operations are mates fair value due to the short maturities of this debt.
translated into U. S. dollars using current exchange rates;
revenues and expenses are translated into U. S. dollars (vii) Long term debt consists of term loans, mortgages
using the average exchange rates for each year. payable and long term notes. Fair values of term loans

approximate the carrying values because such loans con-
The functional currency of most foreign operations is sist primarily of variable-rate debt that reprices frequently.

the currency of the local operating environment since Fair values of mortgages payable are estimated using
their business is primarily transacted in such local curren- discounted cash flow analyses. Fair values of long term
cies. Translation gains and losses, net of applicable in- notes are based on prices quoted by dealers.
come tax, are excluded from income and accumulated in
a separate component of shareholders' equity. The carrying values and fair values of Ñnancial instru-

ments were as follows:
(m) Fair Values of Financial Instruments December 31

1995 1994
Fair values of Ñnancial instruments are based on quoted

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
market prices where available. Fair values of Ñnancial Value Value Value Value
instruments for which quoted market prices are not avail- (in thousands)
able are based on estimates using present value or other ASSETS

Invested assetsvaluation techniques. Those techniques are signiÑcantly
Short term investments ÏÏÏÏ $ 484,439 $ 484,439 $ 810,873 $ 810,873aÅected by the assumptions used, including the discount
Fixed maturities (Note 3)

rates and the estimated amounts and timing of future cash Held-to-maturityÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3,229,225 3,438,658 3,768,574 3,781,174
Öows. Accordingly, the derived fair value estimates can- Available-for-sale ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 9,373,585 9,373,585 6,954,132 6,954,132

Equity securities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 587,825 587,825 642,153 642,153not be substantiated by comparison to independent mar-
Policy and mortgage loans ÏÏ 212,339 212,339 202,679 202,679kets and are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that

Real estate mortgages and
could be realized in immediate settlement of the instru-

notes receivable (Note 5) ÏÏ 409,564 405,400 395,490 353,800
ment. Certain Ñnancial instruments, particularly insur-

LIABILITIES
ance contracts, are excluded from fair value disclosure Short term debt (Note 7) ÏÏÏÏ 187,600 187,600 153,340 153,340
requirements. Long term debt (Note 7) ÏÏÏÏ 1,156,044 1,219,634 1,285,614 1,255,892
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(n) Earnings Per Share (2) Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements

EÅective January 1, 1995, the Corporation adopted
Earnings per share amounts are based on the weighted SFAS No. 114, Accounting by Creditors for Impairment

average number of common and common equivalent of a Loan. Under SFAS No. 114, a loan is considered
shares outstanding during each year, which were impaired and a valuation allowance is established when it
89,942,341, 90,449,577 and 90,548,534 in 1995, is probable that a creditor will be unable to collect all
1994 and 1993, respectively. The 6% guaranteed ex- principal and interest amounts due according to the con-
changeable subordinated notes are considered to be com- tractual terms of the loan agreement. SFAS No. 114
mon equivalent shares. The computation assumes the requires creditors to measure impairment of a loan based
addition to income of the after-tax interest expense appli- on the present value of expected future cash Öows dis-
cable to such notes. The allocated and unallocated shares counted at the loan's eÅective interest rate or, as a
held by the Corporation's Employee Stock Ownership practical expedient, based on the market price of the loan
Plan are considered common shares outstanding. or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral

dependent. Prior to 1995, the Corporation measured im-
pairment of a loan based on undiscounted expected future(o) Cash Flow Information
cash Öows. SFAS No. 114 may not be retroactively
applied to prior years' Ñnancial statements. The initialIn the statement of cash Öows, short term investments
application of SFAS No. 114 resulted in an increase ofare not considered to be cash equivalents. The eÅect of
$10,000,000 to the allowance for uncollectible receivables.changes in foreign exchange rates on cash balances was

immaterial. EÅective January 1, 1994, the Corporation adopted
SFAS No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in
Debt and Equity Securities. Similar to the Corporation's(p) Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted
previous accounting policy for investments in Ñxed matu-
rities and equity securities, SFAS No. 115 provides thatIn March 1995, the Financial Accounting Standards
the accounting for such securities depends on their classi-Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 121, Accounting for the
Ñcation as either held-to-maturity (previously referred toImpairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived
as held for investment), available-for-sale or trading.Assets to Be Disposed Of. The Statement establishes
However, SFAS No. 115 establishes more stringent crite-accounting standards for the impairment of long-lived
ria for classifying Ñxed maturities as held-to-maturity.assets, certain identifiable intangibles, and goodwill re-
Therefore, the adoption of SFAS No. 115 resulted in anlated to those assets. Under SFAS No. 121, an impair-
increase in the portion of the Corporation's Ñxed maturi-ment loss is recognized if the sum of the undiscounted
ties classiÑed as available-for-sale and a similar decreaseexpected future cash Öows is less than the carrying
in those classiÑed as held-to-maturity. SFAS No. 115amount of the asset. Measurement of impairment should
also requires that Ñxed maturities classiÑed as available-be based on the fair value of the asset. SFAS No. 121 is
for-sale be carried at market value, with unrealized appre-eÅective for years beginning after December 15, 1995.
ciation or depreciation excluded from income andRestatement of prior years' Ñnancial statements is not
credited or charged directly to a separate component ofpermitted. The Corporation will adopt SFAS No. 121 in
shareholders' equity. Prior to 1994, such Ñxed maturitiesthe Ñrst quarter of 1996. The adoption of SFAS No. 121
were carried at the lower of the aggregate amortized costis not expected to have a signiÑcant impact on net income
or market value. In conjunction with the Corporation'sin 1996.
adoption of SFAS No. 115, deferred policy acquisition
costs related to universal life and other interest-sensitiveIn October 1995, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123,
life insurance contracts were adjusted to reÖect the eÅectsAccounting for Stock-Based Compensation. SFAS
that would have been recognized had the unrealized gainsNo. 123 encourages but does not require entities to adopt
relating to investments classiÑed as available-for-sale ac-the fair value based method of accounting for all em-
tually been realized, with a corresponding charge directlyployee stock compensation plans, under which compensa-
to the separate component of shareholders' equity. SFAStion cost is measured based on the fair value of the award
No. 115 may not be retroactively applied to prior years'at the grant date and recognized over the service period.
Ñnancial statements. The cumulative eÅect on sharehold-Entities may continue to account for these plans using the
ers' equity, as of January 1, 1994, of the change inintrinsic value based method of accounting, under which
accounting principle was as follows:compensation cost is measured as the excess, if any, of the

quoted market price of the stock at the grant date over the (in thousands)
Unrealized appreciation of Ñxed maturitiesamount an employee must pay to acquire the stock.

considered available-for-sale ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $399,980Entities not adopting the fair value based method must Adjustment to deferred policy acquisition costs ÏÏ (60,720)
present pro forma disclosures of net income and earnings 339,260
per share as if this method had been applied. SFAS Deferred income taxÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 118,741
No. 123 is eÅective for years beginning after Decem- Increase in shareholders' equity ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $220,519
ber 15, 1995. The Corporation plans to continue to use the
intrinsic value based method to measure compensation Adoption of the Statement did not have an impact on net
cost for these plans. income in 1994 or 1995 nor will it in future years.
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(b) Realized investment gains and losses were as follows:Effective January 1, 1993, the Corporation adopted
SFAS No. 106, Employers' Accounting for Postretirement Years Ended December 31

Benefits Other Than Pensions. SFAS No. 106 requires the 1995 1994 1993

Corporation to accrue the expected cost of providing post- (in thousands)
Gross realized investment gainsretirement benefits, principally health care and life insur-

Fixed maturitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 81,665 $ 68,613 $193,738
ance, to employees and their beneficiaries and covered Equity securitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 108,430 138,432 62,274

dependents during the years that the employees render the 190,095 207,045 256,012

Gross realized investment lossesnecessary service. The transition obligation of $89,400,000,
Fixed maturitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 50,929 130,547 20,627which represents the unfunded and unrecognized accumu- Equity securitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 8,506 13,069 2,747

lated postretirement benefit obligation as of January 1, 59,435 143,616 23,374
1993, was recognized in the first quarter of 1993 as the

Realized investment gains ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 130,660 63,429 232,638
cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle. The Income tax ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 45,732 22,257 81,019
cumulative effect, net of related income tax benefits of $ 84,928 $ 41,172 $151,619

$30,400,000, was a decrease in net income of $59,000,000
Proceeds from sales of fixed maturities considered availa-or $.65 per share.

ble-for-sale were $4,552,855,000, $2,894,475,000 and
EÅective January 1, 1993, the Corporation also adopted $3,471,404,000 in 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively. Gross

gains of $81,665,000, $68,553,000 and $152,483,000 and grossSFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. SFAS
losses of $50,929,000, $130,547,000 and $12,542,000 wereNo. 109 prescribes an asset and liability method of
realized on such sales in 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively.accounting for income taxes, the objective of which is to

recognize an asset or liability for the expected future tax (c) The components of unrealized appreciation
eÅects attributable to temporary diÅerences between the (depreciation) of investments carried at market value
Ñnancial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities. were as follows:

December 31Under SFAS No. 109, deferred tax assets are to be
1995 1994recognized unless it is more likely than not that some

(in thousands)portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be Equity securities
Gross unrealized appreciationÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $105,495 $ 58,680realized. SFAS No. 109 was implemented by including
Gross unrealized depreciationÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 11,086 26,062the cumulative eÅect of the change in accounting princi-

94,409 32,618
ple in net income in the Ñrst quarter of 1993. Such

Fixed maturities
cumulative eÅect was an increase in net income of Gross unrealized appreciationÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 504,812 89,999

Gross unrealized depreciationÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 21,827 264,495$39,000,000 or $.43 per share.
482,985 (174,496)

577,394 (141,878)(3) Invested Assets and Related Income Deferred policy acquisition cost adjustmentÏÏÏ (45,250) 26,982

532,144 (114,896)(a) The sources of net investment income were as
Deferred income tax liability, net of valuationfollows: allowance of $49,657 in 1994 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 186,250 9,443

$345,894 $(124,339)Years Ended December 31

1995 1994 1993
The change in unrealized appreciation or depreciation(in thousands)

of investments carried at market value was as follows:
Fixed maturitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $812,910 $740,871 $734,353

Years Ended December 31Equity securitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 15,836 27,066 23,709
Short term investmentsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 39,581 28,925 22,169 1995 1994 1993
OtherÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 32,310 31,819 20,115 (in thousands)

Gross investment income ÏÏÏÏÏÏ 900,637 828,681 800,346
Change in unrealized appreciationInvestment expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 14,747 14,047 11,091

of equity securitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 61,791 $(187,524) $73,841
$885,890 $814,634 $789,255 Change in unrealized appreciation or

depreciation of fixed maturities ÏÏÏ 657,481 (574,476) Ì
Change in deferred policy

acquisition cost adjustmentÏÏÏÏÏ (72,232) 87,702 Ì

647,040 (674,298) 73,841

Deferred income tax (credit)ÏÏÏÏÏ 226,464 (236,004) 27,307
Increase (decrease) in valuation

allowance ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (49,657) 49,657 Ì

470,233 (487,951) 46,534
Cumulative eÅect, as of January 1,

1994, of change in accounting
principle, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 220,519 Ì

$470,233 $(267,432) $46,534
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At December 31, 1995 and 1994, Ñxed maturities classiÑed as held-to-maturity were carried at amortized cost while
Ñxed maturities classiÑed as available-for-sale were carried at market value. In prior years, all Ñxed maturities were
carried at amortized cost. The unrealized appreciation or depreciation of Ñxed maturities carried at amortized cost is not
reÖected in the Ñnancial statements. The change in unrealized appreciation of Ñxed maturities carried at amortized cost
was an increase of $196,833,000, a decrease of $723,889,000 and an increase of $213,959,000 for the years ended
December 31, 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively.

(d) The amortized cost and estimated market value of Ñxed maturities were as follows:

December 31

1995 1994

Gross Gross Estimated Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market

Cost Appreciation Depreciation Value Cost Appreciation Depreciation Value

(in thousands)
Held-to-maturity

Tax exemptÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 2,826,737 $178,997 $ 959 $ 3,004,775 $ 3,149,479 $ 72,939 $ 45,321 $ 3,177,097

Taxable
U.S. Government and government

agency and authority obligations 17,946 2,350 Ì 20,296 17,256 Ì 163 17,093
Corporate bondsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 191,127 21,621 Ì 212,748 235,056 8,809 1,976 241,889
Foreign bondsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 15,119 2,259 Ì 17,378 149 17 Ì 166
Mortgage-backed securities ÏÏÏÏÏÏ 178,296 5,211 46 183,461 366,634 2,316 24,021 344,929

402,488 31,441 46 433,883 619,095 11,142 26,160 604,077

Total held-to-maturityÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3,229,225 210,438 1,005 3,438,658 3,768,574 84,081 71,481 3,781,174

Available-for-sale
Tax exemptÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3,607,925 253,814 1,109 3,860,630 2,524,446 64,309 58,569 2,530,186

Taxable
U.S. Government and government

agency and authority obligations 976,411 38,763 27 1,015,147 1,000,325 1,221 59,891 941,655
Corporate bondsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,106,876 67,734 7,213 1,167,397 1,269,054 14,083 46,099 1,237,038
Foreign bondsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,451,162 68,598 10,351 1,509,409 980,900 3,016 38,692 945,224
Mortgage-backed securities ÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,720,522 75,694 2,924 1,793,292 1,335,876 6,951 61,186 1,281,641
Redeemable preferred stocks ÏÏÏÏÏ 27,704 209 203 27,710 18,027 419 58 18,388

5,282,675 250,998 20,718 5,512,955 4,604,182 25,690 205,926 4,423,946

Total available-for-sale ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 8,890,600 504,812 21,827 9,373,585 7,128,628 89,999 264,495 6,954,132

Total Ñxed maturities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $12,119,825 $715,250 $22,832 $12,812,243 $10,897,202 $174,080 $335,976 $10,735,306

In December 1995, Ñxed maturities classiÑed as held-to-maturity with an aggregate amortized cost of $232,167,000
and unrealized appreciation of $4,019,000 were reclassiÑed as available-for-sale. Such reclassiÑcations resulted from the
Corporation's reassessment of its classiÑcations of Ñxed maturities as permitted under SFAS No. 115 implementation
guidance issued by the FASB in November 1995.

The amortized cost and estimated market value of Ñxed maturities at December 31, 1995 by contractual maturity
were as follows:

Held-to-Maturity Available-for-Sale

Estimated Estimated
Amortized Market Amortized Market

Cost Value Cost Value

(in thousands)

Due in one year or less ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 131,301 $ 133,083 $ 93,793 $ 96,013
Due after one year through Ñve years ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 761,773 810,495 1,283,827 1,349,230
Due after Ñve years through ten years ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,036,461 1,117,958 2,351,732 2,494,389
Due after ten years ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,121,394 1,193,661 3,440,726 3,640,661

3,050,929 3,255,197 7,170,078 7,580,293
Mortgage-backed securities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 178,296 183,461 1,720,522 1,793,292

$3,229,225 $3,438,658 $8,890,600 $9,373,585

Actual maturities could diÅer from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay
obligations.
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(4) Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs appropriate allowance for uncollectible amounts estab-
lished. Mortgages and notes receivable had an aggregatePolicy acquisition costs deferred and the related amor-
fair value of approximately $405,400,000 andtization charged to income were as follows:
$353,800,000 at December 31, 1995 and 1994, respec-

Years Ended December 31
tively. The fair value amounts represent point-in-time

1995 1994 1993
estimates that are not relevant in predicting future earn-

(in thousands)
ings or cash Öows related to such receivables.

Property and Casualty
Insurance Depreciation expense related to income producing
Balance, beginning of year ÏÏÏ $ 529,453 $ 489,702 $ 454,976 properties was $14,123,000, $12,086,000 and $8,671,000
Costs deferred during year for 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively.

Commissions and
brokerage ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 592,687 544,733 463,977

(6) Property and EquipmentPremium taxes and
assessments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 108,002 108,008 103,928

Property and equipment included in other assets wereSalaries and overheadÏÏÏ 449,477 428,255 415,788

as follows:1,150,166 1,080,996 983,693
Amortization during year ÏÏ (1,120,943) (1,041,245) (948,967) December 31
Balance, end of yearÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 558,676 $ 529,453 $ 489,702 1995 1994

(in thousands)
Life and Health Insurance

Balance, beginning of year ÏÏÏ $ 606,493 $ 522,544 $ 474,293 CostÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $437,073 $385,610
Cumulative eÅect, as of Less accumulated depreciation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 193,546 168,128

January 1, 1994, of
$243,527 $217,482change in accounting

principleÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì (60,720) Ì
Depreciation expense related to property and equip-Costs deferred during yearÏÏ 155,905 129,217 111,389

Amortization during yearÏÏ (77,457) (72,250) (63,138) ment was $48,279,000, $40,839,000 and $31,280,000 for
Change in adjustment to 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively.

reflect the effects of
unrealized (gains) losses on

(7) Debt and Credit Arrangementsinvestments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (72,232) 87,702 Ì

Balance, end of yearÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 612,709 $ 606,493 $ 522,544
(a) Short term debt consisted of the following:

December 31
(5) Real Estate Assets

1995 1994

The components of real estate assets were as follows: (in thousands)

December 31
Commercial paper ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $177,600 $143,340

1995 1994
NotesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10,000 10,000

(in thousands)
$187,600 $153,340

Mortgages and notes receivable (net of
allowance for uncollectible amounts of

Short term debt is used primarily to support the real$87,617 and $73,863) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 409,564 $ 395,490
estate operations. The commercial paper is issued byIncome producing properties (net of

accumulated depreciation of $50,192 and Chubb Capital Corporation (Chubb Capital), a subsidi-
$36,069) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 864,449 826,768 ary of the Corporation, and is guaranteed by the Corpora-

Construction in progress ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 87,870 86,125
tion. The notes are current obligations under revolvingLand under development and unimproved landÏÏ 380,697 431,904
credit arrangements. Borrowings under these short term$1,742,580 $1,740,287
instruments are unsecured and are on terms and at

Substantially all mortgages and notes receivable are interest rates generally extended to prime borrowers. The
secured by buildings and land. The ultimate collectibility weighted average interest rate on short term debt approxi-
of the receivables, of which no signiÑcant amounts are mated 5∂% and 6% at December 31, 1995 and 1994,
due in the near term, is evaluated continuously and an respectively.
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(b) Long term debt consisted of the following: 11.628 shares of common stock of the Corporation for
each $1,000 of principal amount, equivalent to a conver-December 31

sion price of $86.00 per share. The notes are redeemable,1995 1994

in whole or in part, at the option of Chubb Capital atCarrying Fair Carrying Fair
Value Value Value Value redemption prices declining annually from 102.6% of the

(in thousands) principal amount if redeemed before May 15, 1996 to
100.9% of the principal amount if redeemed on or afterTerm loans ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 331,023 $ 331,023 $ 324,413 $ 324,413

MortgagesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 205,021 205,607 211,201 196,104 May 15, 1997.
83/4% notes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 120,000 133,104 150,000 151,125

The Corporation Ñled a shelf registration statement8µ% notes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì 100,000 100,000
6% notes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 150,000 151,365 150,000 141,000 which the Securities and Exchange Commission declared
6∑% notes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 100,000 105,410 100,000 90,750 eÅective in June 1995, under which up to $400,000,000 of
6% exchangeable

various types of securities may be issued by the Corpora-subordinated
notes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 250,000 293,125 250,000 252,500 tion or Chubb Capital. No securities have been issued

$1,156,044 $1,219,634 $1,285,614 $1,255,892 under this registration.

The amounts of long term debt due annually during the
The term loans and mortgages are obligations of the Ñve years subsequent to December 31, 1995 are as

real estate subsidiaries, except for a $5,212,000 mortgage follows:
loan of the life and health insurance subsidiaries. The Term Loans

Years Ending andterm loans mature in varying amounts through 2000.
December 31 Mortgages Notes Total

Substantially all term loans are at an interest rate
(in thousands)

equivalent to the lower of the prime rate or a rate
1996ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $167,737 $ 30,000 $197,737associated with the lender's cost of funds. The mortgages
1997ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 52,026 30,000 82,026payable are due in varying amounts monthly through
1998ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 46,875 430,000 476,8752013. At December 31, 1995, the range of interest rates
1999ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 85,760 30,000 115,760for term loans was 6% to 9¥% and for mortgages payable
2000ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 149,917 Ì 149,917the range was 5% to 12%. The term loans and mortgages

payable are secured by real estate assets with a net book (c) Interest costs of $101,526,000, $98,685,000 and
value of $1,009,821,000 at December 31, 1995. $92,905,000 were incurred in 1995, 1994 and 1993, re-

spectively, of which $16,352,000, $19,407,000 andThe Corporation has outstanding $120,000,000 of
$28,685,000 were capitalized.unsecured 8∂% notes due November 15, 1999. The notes

are subject to mandatory sinking fund payments in (d) The Corporation has a revolving credit agreement
amounts suÇcient to redeem $30,000,000 of principal in with a group of banks that provides for unsecured borrow-
each of the years 1996 through 1998. The notes are to be ings of up to $300,000,000. The agreement terminates on
redeemed on a pro rata basis on November 15 of each of July 15, 1997 at which time any loans then outstanding
these years at a redemption price of 100% of their princi- become payable. Various interest rate options are availa-
pal amount. ble to the Corporation, all of which are based on market

rates. The Corporation pays a facility fee of 1/10% per
Chubb Capital has outstanding $150,000,000 of 6%

annum. There have been no borrowings under this agree-
notes due February 1, 1998 and $100,000,000 of 6∑%

ment. The Corporation and its subsidiaries had additional
notes due February 1, 2003. These notes are unsecured

unused lines of credit of approximately $178,000,000 at
and are guaranteed by the Corporation.

December 31, 1995. These lines of credit generally have
Chubb Capital has outstanding in the Eurodollar market terms ranging from thirty days to one year and are paid

$250,000,000 of 6% exchangeable subordinated notes due for with a combination of fees and compensating bank
May 15, 1998, which are guaranteed by the Corporation. balances. Unused credit facilities are available to support
The notes are exchangeable at the option of the holder into the commercial paper borrowing arrangement.
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(8) Federal and Foreign Income Tax

(a) Income tax expense consisted of the following components:

Years Ended December 31

1995 1994 1993

(in thousands)
Current tax

United States ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $207,004 $ 97,848 $ 105,293
ForeignÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 21,462 31,635 11,702

Deferred tax credit, principally United StatesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (25,023) (18,588) (116,720)

$203,443 $110,895 $ 275

(b) The provision for federal and foreign income tax gives eÅect to permanent diÅerences between income for
Ñnancial reporting purposes and taxable income. Accordingly, the eÅective income tax rate is less than the statutory
federal corporate tax rate. The reasons for the lower eÅective tax rate were as follows:

Years Ended December 31

1995 1994 1993

% of % of % of
Pre-Tax Pre-Tax Pre-Tax

Amount Income Amount Income Amount Income

(in thousands)

Income before federal and foreign income tax ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 900,071 $ 639,364 $ 344,492

Tax at statutory federal income tax rate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 315,025 35.0% $ 223,777 35.0% $ 120,572 35.0%
Tax exempt interest income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (115,165) (12.8) (109,980) (17.2) (110,297) (32.0)
Other, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3,583 .4 (2,902) (.5) (10,000) (2.9)

Actual tax ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 203,443 22.6% $ 110,895 17.3% $ 275 .1%

(c) The tax eÅects of temporary diÅerences that gave rise to deferred income tax assets and liabilities were as
follows:

December 31

1995 1994

(in thousands)
Deferred income tax assets

Property and casualty unpaid claims ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $523,535 $478,166
Unearned premiums ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 130,226 121,269
Life and health policy liabilitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 147,284 127,867
Unrealized depreciation of investmentsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 49,657
Postretirement beneÑts ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 54,997 50,015

856,042 826,974
Valuation allowanceÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì (49,657)

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 856,042 777,317

Deferred income tax liabilities
Deferred policy acquisition costs ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 338,313 338,897
Real estate assetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 118,225 116,056
Unrealized appreciation of investmentsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 202,088 Ì
Other, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 37,742 7,644

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 696,368 462,597

Net deferred income tax asset ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $159,674 $314,720

The valuation allowance at December 31, 1994 was related to future tax beneÑts on unrealized depreciation of
investments, the realization of which was uncertain. The valuation allowance had no impact on net income.
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(9) Pensions and Other Postretirement BeneÑts (b) The Corporation and its subsidiaries provide certain
other postretirement benefits, principally health care and life

(a) The Corporation and its subsidiaries have several
insurance, to retired employees and their beneficiaries and

non-contributory deÑned beneÑt pension plans covering
covered dependents. Substantially all employees may be-

substantially all employees. The beneÑts are generally
come eligible for these benefits upon retirement if they meet

based on an employee's years of service and average
minimum age and years of service requirements.

compensation during the last Ñve years of employment.
The Corporation does not fund these beneÑts in ad-Pension costs are determined using the projected unit

vance. BeneÑts are paid as covered expenses are incurred.credit method. The Corporation's policy is to make an-
Health care coverage is contributory. Retiree contribu-nual contributions that meet the minimum funding re-
tions vary based upon a retiree's age, type of coverage andquirements of the Employee Retirement Income Security
years of service with the Corporation. Life insuranceAct of 1974. Contributions are intended to provide not
coverage is non-contributory.only for beneÑts attributed to service to date but also for

those expected to be earned in the future. The components of net postretirement beneÑt cost were
as follows:The components of net pension cost were as follows:

Years Ended December 31Years Ended December 31
1995 1994 19931995 1994 1993

(in thousands)(in thousands)

Service cost of current period ÏÏÏÏ $ 5,687 $ 5,153 $ 4,384Service cost of current period ÏÏÏ $ 20,422 $ 19,702 $ 17,877
Interest cost on accumulatedInterest cost on projected beneÑt

beneÑt obligation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7,949 7,420 6,864obligation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 23,822 21,232 19,598

Actual return on plan assets ÏÏÏ (68,542) (523) (30,767) Net postretirement beneÑt costÏÏÏ $13,636 $12,573 $11,248
Net amortization and deferral ÏÏÏ 42,730 (23,420) 10,706

The components of the accumulated postretirementNet pension costÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 18,432 $ 16,991 $ 17,414

beneÑt obligation were as follows:
The following table sets forth the plans' funded status December 31

and amounts recognized in the balance sheets: 1995 1994

(in thousands)December 31

1995 1994 RetireesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 38,735 $ 38,713
(in thousands) Fully eligible active plan participants ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5,103 4,371

Other active plan participants ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 74,572 61,207Actuarial present value of beneÑt obligation
for service rendered to date: Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation ÏÏ 118,410 104,291

Accumulated beneÑt obligation based on
Unrecognized net gain (loss) from pastcurrent salary levels, including vested

experience diÅerent from that assumed ÏÏÏÏ (933) 3,909beneÑts of $212,752 and $180,407ÏÏÏÏÏ $224,821 $190,100
Additional amount related to projected Postretirement beneÑt liability included in

future salary increasesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 131,473 118,283 other liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $117,477 $108,200
Projected beneÑt obligation for service

rendered to dateÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 356,294 308,383 The weighted average discount rate used in determin-
Plan assets at fair value ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 341,112 269,349 ing the actuarial present value of the accumulated postre-
Projected beneÑt obligation in excess of plan tirement beneÑt obligation at December 31, 1995 andassetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 15,182 39,034

1994 was 7¥% and 7∂%, respectively. At December 31,Unrecognized net gain from past experience
diÅerent from that assumed ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 36,196 10,209 1995, the weighted average health care cost trend rate

Unrecognized prior service costs ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (5,208) (5,625) used to measure the accumulated postretirement cost for
Unrecognized net asset at January 1, 1985, medical beneÑts was 11∂% for 1996 and was assumed to

being recognized principally over 19 yearsÏÏÏ 8,297 9,647
decrease gradually to 7¥% for the year 2005 and remain

Pension liability included in other liabilities ÏÏÏ $ 54,467 $ 53,265
at that level thereafter. The health care cost trend rate
assumption has a signiÑcant eÅect on the amount of the

The weighted average discount rate used in determining
accumulated postretirement beneÑt obligation and the net

the actuarial present value of the projected beneÑt obliga-
postretirement beneÑt cost reported. To illustrate, a one

tion at December 31, 1995 and 1994 was 7¥% and 7∂%,
percent increase in the trend rate for each year would

respectively, and the rate of increase in future compensa-
increase the accumulated postretirement beneÑt obliga-

tion levels was 6% for both years. The expected long term
tion at December 31, 1995 by $15,674,000 and the aggre-

rate of return on assets was 9% for both years.
gate of the service and interest cost components of net

Plan assets are principally invested in publicly traded postretirement beneÑt cost for the year ended
stocks and bonds. December 31, 1995 by $2,017,000.
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(10) Option and Incentive Plans

(a) The Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan provides for the granting of stock options, performance shares, restricted
stock, convertible debentures and other stock based awards to key employees. The Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan
succeeds a prior stock option plan which continues to govern awards made pursuant to it. The maximum number of shares
of the Corporation's common stock in respect to which stock based awards may be granted under the plan is 4,400,000
shares. At December 31, 1995, 1,220,273 shares were available for grant under the Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan.

Stock options are granted at exercise prices not less than the fair market value of the Corporation's common stock on
the date of grant. The terms and conditions upon which options become exercisable may vary among grants. Options
expire no later than ten years from the date of grant.

Information concerning stock options granted under the Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan and the prior plan is as
follows:

1995 1994 1993

Option Option Option
Number Price Number Price Number Price
of Shares Per Share of Shares Per Share of Shares Per Share

Outstanding, beginning of yearÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2,724,809 $24.50-92.63 2,083,758 $13.23-92.63 1,558,484 $13.23-74.06

GrantedÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 997,115 82.06-98.75 754,525 81.94 678,461 83.56-92.63

Exercised ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (369,166) 24.50-83.56 (76,034) 13.23-72.06 (136,888) 13.23-72.06

Cancelled ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (70,241) 66.75-88.69 (37,440) 47.75-83.56 (16,299) 24.50-83.56

Outstanding, end of yearÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3,282,517 27.93-98.75 2,724,809 24.50-92.63 2,083,758 13.23-92.63

Exercisable, end of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,980,793 27.93-98.75 1,665,228 24.50-92.63 1,147,272 13.23-92.63

Performance share awards are based on the achievement of various goals over performance cycle periods. The cost of
such awards is expensed over the performance cycle. Such awards are payable in cash, in shares of the Corporation's
common stock or in a combination of both. Restricted stock awards consist of shares of common stock of the Corporation
granted at no cost. Shares of restricted stock become outstanding when granted, receive dividends and have voting rights.
The shares are subject to forfeiture and to restrictions which limit the sale or transfer during the restriction period. An
amount equal to the fair market value of the shares at the date of grant is expensed over the restriction period. Convertible
debenture awards are convertible into shares of common stock of the Corporation. The debentures and any shares of
common stock issued upon conversion are subject to forfeiture and to restrictions which limit the sale or transfer during
the restriction period. The cost of the debenture awards is expensed during the period the related service is performed.
The aggregate amount charged against income with respect to these awards was $8,626,000, $5,213,000 and $4,219,000 in
1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively.

(b) The Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors provides for the granting of options to eligible directors to
purchase shares of the Corporation's common stock. Options are granted at exercise prices equal to the fair market value
of the Corporation's common stock on the date of grant. Options become exercisable immediately and expire no later than
Ñve years from the date of termination as an eligible director. The maximum number of shares in respect to which options
may be granted under the plan is 300,000 shares. At December 31, 1995, 224,000 shares were available for grant under the
Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors.

Information concerning stock options granted under the Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors is as
follows:

1995 1994 1993

Option Option Option
Number Price Number Price Number Price
of Shares Per Share of Shares Per Share of Shares Per Share

Outstanding, beginning of yearÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 146,000 $26.84-86.94 124,000 $26.84-86.94 100,000 $26.84-69.19

GrantedÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 24,000 78.75 24,000 77.50 28,000 86.94

Exercised ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (11,000) 26.84-69.19 (2,000) 34.22 (4,000) 26.84-44.19

Outstanding and exercisable, end of year ÏÏ 159,000 26.84-86.94 146,000 26.84-86.94 124,000 26.84-86.94
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(c) The Corporation has a leveraged Employee Stock (e) The Corporation has a Stock Purchase Plan under
Ownership Plan (ESOP) in which substantially all em- which substantially all employees are eligible to purchase
ployees are eligible to participate. At its inception in 1989, shares of the Corporation's common stock based on
the ESOP used the proceeds of a $150,000,000 loan from compensation. Shares are purchased at a price not less
the Corporation to purchase 3,896,102 newly issued than 95% of the fair market value on the date of grant. At
shares of the Corporation's common stock. The loan is December 31, 1995, there were 369,365 subscribed shares
due in September 2004 and bears interest at 9%. The at a price of $70.69.
Corporation has recorded the receivable from the ESOP

(11) Leasesas a separate reduction of shareholders' equity on the
consolidated balance sheets. This balance is reduced as The Corporation and its subsidiaries occupy oÇce facil-
repayments are made on the loan principal. ities under lease agreements which expire at various dates

The Corporation and its participating subsidiaries make through 2009; such leases are generally renewed or
semi-annual contributions to the ESOP in amounts deter- replaced by other leases. In addition, the Corporation's
mined at the discretion of the Corporation's Board of subsidiaries lease data processing, oÇce and transporta-
Directors. The contributions, together with the dividends tion equipment.
on the unallocated shares of common stock in the ESOP,

Most leases contain renewal options for incrementsare used by the ESOP to make loan interest and principal
ranging from two to ten years; certain lease agreementspayments to the Corporation. As interest and principal are
provide for rent increases based on price-level factors. Allpaid, a portion of the common stock is allocated to
leases are operating leases.eligible employees.

The Corporation uses the cash payment method of Rent expense was as follows:
recognizing ESOP expense. In 1995, 1994 and 1993, cash
contributions to the ESOP of $12,307,000, $12,146,000 Years Ended December 31
and $12,172,000, respectively, were charged against in- 1995 1994 1993
come. Dividends on unallocated shares used for debt (in thousands)
service by the ESOP were $4,468,000, $4,615,000 and OÇce facilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $70,748 $69,679 $68,805
$4,711,000 in 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively. Equipment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 14,596 16,240 20,794

The number of allocated and unallocated shares held $85,344 $85,919 $89,599

by the ESOP at December 31, 1995 were 1,392,527 and
2,337,662, respectively. At December 31, 1995, future minimum rental pay-

ments required under non-cancellable operating leases(d) The Corporation has a savings plan, the Capital
were as follows:Accumulation Plan, in which substantially all employees

are eligible to participate. Under this plan, the employer
Years Ending December 31 (in thousands)makes a matching contribution equal to 100% of each

1996 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 73,825eligible employee's pre-tax elective contributions, up to
1997 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 67,9704% of the employee's compensation. Contributions are
1998 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 61,279invested at the election of the employee in the Corpora-
1999 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 52,364

tion's common stock or in various other investment funds.
2000 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 37,770

Employer contributions of $13,443,000, $13,026,000 and
After 2000 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 108,757

$12,564,000 were charged against income in 1995, 1994
$401,965

and 1993, respectively.
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(13) Reinsurance(12) Related Party Transactions

The effect of reinsurance on the premiums earned of theSun Alliance Group plc (Sun Group), an insurance
property and casualty insurance subsidiaries was as follows:holding company organized under the laws of England, is

Years Ended December 31the beneÑcial owner of 5.2% of the Corporation's common
1995 1994 1993stock.

(in thousands)

Direct ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 4,754,423 $ 4,415,080 $ 4,155,356A portion of the U.S. insurance business written by the
Reinsurance assumed ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 712,080 641,615 478,464Corporation's property and casualty insurance subsidiaries
Reinsurance cededÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (1,319,341) (1,280,412) (1,128,982)is reinsured on a quota share basis with a subsidiary of the
Premiums earnedÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 4,147,162 $ 3,776,283 $ 3,504,838Sun Group. The Sun Group's premiums earned arising

from such reinsurance were $520,528,000, $489,727,000 Reinsurance recoveries by the property and casualty
and $457,321,000 in 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively. insurance subsidiaries which have been deducted from
Reinsurance recoverable on property and casualty unpaid insurance claims and policyholders' beneÑts in the consol-
claims included approximately $775,000,000 and idated statements of income were $936,080,000,

$962,332,000 and $590,502,000 in 1995, 1994 and 1993,$845,000,000 at December 31, 1995 and 1994, respec-
respectively.tively, from the Sun Group.

The eÅect of reinsurance on the premiums and policy
charges of the life and health insurance subsidiaries wasA property and casualty insurance subsidiary of the
as follows:Corporation assumes a portion of the Sun Group's prop-

Years Ended December 31erty and casualty insurance business on a quota share
1995 1994 1993basis. The assumed reinsurance premiums earned arising

(in thousands)from this business were $340,767,000, $264,343,000 and
$170,131,000 in 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively. Direct ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $652,035 $862,085 $831,849

Reinsurance assumed ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,766 2,056 2,784
Reinsurance cededÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (30,864) (27,848) (33,397)

The property and casualty insurance subsidiaries of the
Premiums and policy chargesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $622,937 $836,293 $801,236Corporation entered into a stop loss reinsurance agree-

ment with a subsidiary of the Sun Group, eÅective year Reinsurance recoveries by the life and health insurance
end 1985, relating to medical malpractice unpaid claims. subsidiaries which have been deducted from insurance
The agreement included a commutation provision under claims and policyholders' beneÑts in the consolidated
which the property and casualty insurance subsidiaries statements of income were $50,537,000, $53,141,000 and
had an option to reassume the remaining liability of the $42,005,000 in 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively.
Sun Group as of December 31, 1995 and receive payment
of an amount determined by a formula based on experi-

(14) Property and Casualty Unpaid Claimsence under the agreement. The property and casualty
insurance subsidiaries exercised this option, which re-

The process of establishing loss reserves is an imprecisesulted in an amount due from the Sun Group of
science and reÖects signiÑcant judgmental factors.$191,194,000 and a reduction in reinsurance recoverable
In many liability cases, signiÑcant periods of time, rangingon unpaid claims from the Sun Group of $66,194,000.
up to several years or more, may elapse between theThe diÅerence of $125,000,000 represents a return pre-
occurrence of an insured loss, the reporting of the loss andmium to the property and casualty insurance subsidiaries,
the settlement of the loss.which was recognized in 1993 at the time the Corporation

announced its intention to exercise the commutation Judicial decisions and legislative actions continue to
broaden liability and policy deÑnitions and to increase theoption. The amount due from the Sun Group was re-
severity of claim payments. As a result of this and otherceived in January 1996.
societal and economic developments, the uncertainties
inherent in estimating ultimate claim costs on the basis of

The agreement also included a provision for contingent past experience have increased signiÑcantly, further com-
proÑt sharing payments to the property and casualty plicating the already diÇcult loss reserving process.
insurance subsidiaries based on calculations at speciÑed

The uncertainties relating to asbestos and toxic wastedates during the period of the reinsurance agreement.
claims on insurance policies written many years ago areProÑt sharing accruals related to the agreement were
exacerbated by judicial and legislative interpretations of$11,062,000 and $9,000,000 in 1994 and 1993, respec-
coverage that in some cases have tended to erode thetively. These amounts were reÖected as reductions of
clear and express intent of such policies and in othersother insurance operating costs and expenses.
have expanded theories of liability. The industry is en-
gaged in extensive litigation over these coverage and

The reinsurance amounts described in Note (13) include liability issues and is thus confronted with a continuing
the effects of these transactions with the Sun Group. uncertainty in its eÅort to quantify these exposures.
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The trilateral agreement reaÇrms portions of an agree-In 1993, PaciÑc Indemnity Company, a subsidiary of
ment reached in March 1992 between PaciÑc Indemnitythe Corporation, entered into a global settlement agree-
and Fibreboard. Among other matters, that 1992 agree-ment with Continental Casualty Company (a subsidiary
ment eliminates any PaciÑc Indemnity liability toof CNA Financial Corporation), Fibreboard Corporation,
Fibreboard for asbestos-related property damage claims.and attorneys representing claimants against Fibreboard

for all future asbestos-related bodily injury claims against
Additional loss reserves of $675,000,000 were providedFibreboard. This agreement is subject to Ñnal appellate

in 1993 at the time the settlement was negotiated.court approval. Pursuant to the global settlement agree-
ment, a $1,525,000,000 trust fund will be established to In July 1995, the United States District Court of the
pay future claims, which are claims that were not Ñled in Eastern District of Texas approved the global settlement
court before August 27, 1993. PaciÑc Indemnity will agreement and the trilateral agreement. The judgments
contribute $538,172,000 to the trust fund and Continental approving these agreements have been appealed to the
Casualty will contribute the remaining amount. In De- United States Court of Appeal for the Fifth Circuit. The
cember 1993, upon execution of the global settlement appeals are scheduled to be argued in early March 1996.
agreement, PaciÑc Indemnity and Continental Casualty The period of ultimate judicial review continues to
paid their respective shares into an escrow account. lengthen and may well extend into 1997.
PaciÑc Indemnity's share is included in funds held for

Management is optimistic that the approval of theasbestos-related settlement. Upon Ñnal court approval of
settlement will be upheld. However, if both the globalthe settlement, the amount in the escrow account, includ-
settlement agreement and the trilateral agreement areing interest earned thereon, will be transferred to the trust
disapproved by an appellate court, there can then be nofund. All of the parties have agreed to use their best
assurance that the loss reserves established for futureeÅorts to seek Ñnal court approval of the global settlement
claims would be suÇcient to pay all amounts whichagreement.
ultimately could become payable in respect of future

PaciÑc Indemnity and Continental Casualty have asbestos-related bodily injury claims against Fibreboard.
reached a separate agreement for the handling of all

Pacific Indemnity, Continental Casualty and Fibreboardasbestos-related bodily injury claims pending on
have requested a California Court of Appeal to delay itsAugust 26, 1993 against Fibreboard.  In February 1995,

the agreement was amended to extend for several years decisions regarding asbestos-related insurance coverage is-
the period over which PaciÑc Indemnity will pay its sues, which are currently before it and involve the three
remaining obligation, plus interest, under this agreement. parties exclusively, while the approval of the global settle-
PaciÑc Indemnity's obligation under this agreement is not ment is pending in court. Continental Casualty and Pacific
expected to exceed $635,000,000, of which approximately Indemnity have dismissed disputes against each other which
$450,000,000 remained unpaid at December 31, 1995. involved Fibreboard and were in litigation.
Assets to be used for the payment of this obligation have
been designated as funds held for asbestos-related settle- The property and casualty insurance subsidiaries have
ment. The agreement further provides that the total additional potential asbestos exposure on insureds for
responsibility of both insurers with respect to pending and which excess liability coverages were written. Such expo-
future asbestos-related bodily injury claims against sure has increased due to the erosion of much of the
Fibreboard will be shared between PaciÑc Indemnity and underlying limits. The number of claims against such
Continental Casualty on an approximate 35% and 65% insureds and the value of such claims have increased in
basis, respectively. recent years due in part to the non-viability of other

defendants.PaciÑc Indemnity, Continental Casualty and
Fibreboard have entered into a trilateral agreement, sub- Other remaining asbestos exposures are mostly periph-
ject to Ñnal appellate court approval, to settle all present

eral defendants, including a mix of manufacturers andand future asbestos-related bodily injury claims resulting
distributors of certain products that contain asbestos asfrom insurance policies that were, or may have been,
well as premises owners. Generally, these insureds areissued to Fibreboard by the two insurers. The trilateral
named defendants on a regional rather than a nationwideagreement will be triggered if the global settlement agree-
basis. Notices of new asbestos claims and new exposuresment is disapproved by an appellate court. PaciÑc Indem-
on existing claims continue to be received as more periph-nity's obligation under the trilateral agreement is
eral parties are drawn into litigation to replace the nowtherefore similar to, and not duplicative of, that under

those agreements described above. defunct mines and bankrupt manufacturers.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending liabilityThe courts have been engaged in developing guidelines
for property and casualty unpaid claims, net of reinsur-regarding coverage for asbestos claims and have begun to
ance recoverable, and a reconciliation of the net liabilityarticulate more consistent standards regarding the extent
to the corresponding liability on a gross basis is as follows:of the obligation of insurers to provide coverage and the

method of allocation of costs among insurers. However, 1995 1994 1993

the universe of potential claims is still unknown. There- (in thousands)

fore, uncertainty remains as to the property and casualty Gross liability, beginning of yearÏÏ $8,913,220 $8,235,442 $7,220,919
Reinsurance recoverable,insurance subsidiaries' ultimate liability for asbestos-

beginning of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,980,340 1,785,396 1,953,305
related claims.

Net liability, beginning of year ÏÏ 6,932,880 6,450,046 5,267,614
Hazardous waste sites are another significant potential

Net incurred claims and claim
exposure. Under the ""Superfund'' law and similar state expenses related to:

Current year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2,705,800 2,549,100 2,214,300statutes, when potentially responsible parties (PRPs) fail to
Prior years ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (35,819) (29,741) 664,798

handle the clean-up, regulators have the work done and then
2,669,981 2,519,359 2,879,098

attempt to establish legal liability against the PRPs. The
Net payments for claims and

PRPs disposed of toxic materials at a waste dump site or claim expenses related to:
transported the materials to the site. Insurance policies Current year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 737,686 764,525 656,766

Prior years ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,250,700 1,272,000 1,039,900issued to PRPs were not intended to cover the clean-up
1,988,386 2,036,525 1,696,666costs of pollution and, in many cases, did not intend to cover

Net liability, end of yearÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7,614,475 6,932,880 6,450,046the pollution itself. As the cost of environmental clean-up
Reinsurance recoverable,

continues to grow, PRPs and others have increasingly filed end of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,973,666 1,980,340 1,785,396
claims with their insurance carriers. Ensuing litigation ex-

Gross liability, end of year ÏÏÏÏ $9,588,141 $8,913,220 $8,235,442
tends to issues of liability, coverage and other policy provi-
sions. There is great uncertainty involved in estimating the During 1995, the property and casualty insurance sub-
property and casualty insurance subsidiaries' liabilities re- sidiaries experienced overall favorable development of

$35,819,000 on net unpaid claims established as of thelated to these claims. First, the underlying liabilities of the
previous year-end. This compares with favorable develop-claimants are extremely difficult to estimate. At any given
ment of $29,741,000 in 1994 and unfavorable develop-clean-up site, the allocation of remediation costs among
ment of $664,798,000 in 1993. Such redundancies andgovernmental authorities and the PRPs varies greatly. Sec-
deÑciency were reÖected in operating results in these

ond, different courts have addressed liability and coverage
respective years. Excluding the eÅect of the $675,000,000

issues regarding pollution claims and have reached inconsis- increase in unpaid claims related to the Fibreboard settle-
tent conclusions in their interpretation of several issues. ment, the property and casualty insurance subsidiaries
These significant uncertainties are not likely to be resolved experienced favorable development of $10,202,000 in
in the near future. 1993. Each of the past three years beneÑted from

favorable claim severity trends for certain liability classes;Uncertainties also remain as to the Superfund law
this was oÅset each year in varying degrees by increases in

itself. Superfund's taxing authority expired on Decem-
unpaid claims relating to asbestos and toxic waste claims.

ber 31, 1995. It is currently not possible to predict the
Management believes that the aggregate loss reservesdirection that any reforms may take, when they may

of the property and casualty insurance subsidiaries atoccur or the eÅect that any changes may have on the
December 31, 1995 were adequate to cover claims for

insurance industry.
losses which had occurred, including both those known

Reserves for asbestos and toxic waste claims cannot be and those yet to be reported. In establishing such reserves,
estimated with traditional loss reserving techniques. Case management considers facts currently known and the
reserves and expense reserves for costs of related litigation present state of the law and coverage litigation. However,

given the expansion of coverage and liability by the courtshave been established where suÇcient information has
and the legislatures in the past and the possibilities ofbeen developed to indicate the involvement of a speciÑc
similar interpretations in the future, particularly as theyinsurance policy. In addition, incurred but not reported
relate to asbestos and toxic waste claims, as well as thereserves have been established to cover additional expo-
uncertainty in determining what scientiÑc standards will

sures on both known and unasserted claims. These
be deemed acceptable for measuring hazardous waste site

reserves are continually reviewed and updated. clean-up, additional increases in loss reserves may emerge
which would adversely aÅect results in future periods.
The amount cannot reasonably be estimated at the pre-
sent time.
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(15) Business Segments

The Corporation is a holding company and is principally engaged, through subsidiaries, in three industries: property
and casualty insurance, life and health insurance and real estate. The property and casualty insurance subsidiaries
underwrite most forms of property and casualty insurance in the United States, Canada, Europe, Australia and the Far
East. The geographic distribution of property and casualty business in the United States is broad with a particularly strong
market presence in the Northeast. The life and health insurance subsidiaries, which market a wide variety of insurance
and investment products throughout the United States, are principally engaged in the sale of personal and group life and
health insurance as well as annuity contracts. The real estate subsidiary is involved in commercial development activities
primarily in New Jersey with additional operations in several other states as well as residential development activities in
central Florida and northern New Jersey.

Revenues, income from operations before income tax and identiÑable assets for each industry segment were as
follows:

Years Ended December 31

1995 1994 1993

Revenues (in thousands)
Property and Casualty Insurance

Premiums earned ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 4,147,162 $ 3,776,283 $ 3,504,838
Investment income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 613,242 570,531 541,749

Life and Health Insurance
Premiums and policy charges ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 622,937 836,293 801,236
Investment income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 232,950 208,745 205,891

Real Estate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 287,795 204,849 160,650

5,904,086 5,596,701 5,214,364
Corporate investment income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 54,445 49,405 52,706
Realized investment gains (losses)

Property and Casualty Insurance ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 95,030 55,203 172,925
Life and Health Insurance ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 21,808 9,304 22,056
CorporateÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 13,822 (1,078) 37,657

Total revenuesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 6,089,191 $ 5,709,535 $ 5,499,708

Income (loss) from operations before income tax
Property and Casualty Insurance ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 697,141 $ 552,170 $ (1,383)
Life and Health Insurance ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 41,265 18,754 88,729
Real Estate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7,696 (5,950) 2,051

746,102 564,974 89,397
CorporateÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 23,309 10,961 22,457
Realized investment gains (losses)

Property and Casualty Insurance ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 95,030 55,203 172,925
Life and Health Insurance ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 21,808 9,304 22,056
CorporateÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 13,822 (1,078) 37,657

Income before federal and foreign income tax ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 900,071 $ 639,364 $ 344,492

December 31

IdentiÑable assets
Property and Casualty Insurance ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $16,157,688 $14,435,933 $13,372,599
Life and Health Insurance ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4,275,365 3,760,079 3,529,802
Real Estate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,842,831 1,796,706 1,745,212

Total identiÑable assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 22,275,884 19,992,718 18,647,613
CorporateÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 959,384 945,397 1,047,606
Adjustments and eliminations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (238,743) (215,060) (258,349)

Total assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $22,996,525 $20,723,055 $19,436,870
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The following additional information is with respect to the more signiÑcant groupings of classes of business for the
property and casualty operations:

Years Ended December 31

1995 1994 1993

Premiums earned (in thousands)

Personal ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 832,423 $ 812,033 $ 807,550
Standard Commercial ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,408,811 1,279,069 1,294,182
Specialty Commercial ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,556,473 1,404,793 1,208,672
Reinsurance Assumed ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 349,455 280,388 194,434

Total premiums earned ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $4,147,162 $3,776,283 $3,504,838

Income (loss) from operations before income tax
Personal ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 92,686 $ (7,475) $ 30,536
Standard Commercial ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (135,095) (106,126) (642,747)
Specialty Commercial ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 132,187 106,557 101,584
Reinsurance Assumed ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4,376 (1,267) (24,465)

Underwriting income (loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 94,154 (8,311) (535,092)
Net investment income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 602,987 560,481 533,709

Income (loss) from operations before income tax ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 697,141 $ 552,170 $ (1,383)

Standard Commercial premiums earned for 1993 include a $125,000,000 return premium to the property and casualty insurance subsidiaries related to
the commutation of a medical malpractice reinsurance agreement. Standard Commercial underwriting loss in 1993 reÖects a $675,000,000 increase in
unpaid claims related to an agreement for the settlement of asbestos-related litigation and the $125,000,000 return premium, resulting in a net charge of
$550,000,000.

The underwriting income or loss by class of business reÖects allocations of certain signiÑcant underwriting expenses
using allocation methods deemed reasonable. Other acceptable allocation methods could produce diÅerent results by
groupings of classes of business. Property and casualty assets are available for payment of claims and expenses for all
classes of business; therefore, such assets and the related investment income have not been identiÑed with speciÑc
groupings of classes of business.

(16) International Operations

The international business of the property and casualty insurance segment is conducted through subsidiaries that
operate solely outside of the United States and branch oÇces of domestic subsidiaries. The assets and liabilities related to
such operations are located primarily in the countries in which the insurance risks are written. International business is
also obtained from treaty reinsurance assumed, principally from the Sun Group.

Shown below is a summary of revenues, income from operations before income tax and identiÑable assets of the
property and casualty insurance subsidiaries by geographic area.

Years Ended December 31

1995 1994 1993

(in thousands)
Revenues

United States ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 3,715,023 $ 3,508,243 $ 3,397,825
InternationalÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,045,381 838,571 648,762

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 4,760,404 $ 4,346,814 $ 4,046,587

Income (loss) from operations before income tax
United States ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 592,684 $ 479,153 $ 8,311
InternationalÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 104,457 73,017 (9,694)

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 697,141 $ 552,170 $ (1,383)

December 31

IdentiÑable assets
United States ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $14,055,334 $12,937,447 $12,189,556
InternationalÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2,102,354 1,498,486 1,183,043

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $16,157,688 $14,435,933 $13,372,599
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Foreign currency translation gains or losses credited or charged directly to the separate component of shareholders'
equity were as follows:

Years Ended December 31

1995 1994 1993

(in thousands)

Gains (losses) on translation of foreign currenciesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(15,931) $14,517 $ 8,492
Income tax (credit)

Current ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (5,994) 4,633 8,546
DeferredÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3,262 445 (5,545)

$(13,199) $ 9,439 $ 5,491

(17) Shareholders' Equity

(a) The authorized but unissued preferred shares may be issued in one or more series and the shares of each series
shall have such rights as Ñxed by the Board of Directors.

(b) The activity of the Corporation's common stock was as follows:

Years Ended December 31

1995 1994 1993

(number of shares)
Common stock issued

Balance, beginning of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 87,798,286 87,709,465 87,519,560
Shares issued under option and incentive plans ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 21,069 88,821 189,905

Balance, end of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 87,819,355 87,798,286 87,709,465

Treasury stock
Balance, beginning of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 977,580 Ì Ì
Repurchase of sharesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 1,001,500 Ì
Shares issued under option and incentive plans ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (459,112) Ì Ì
Shares issued Ì other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì (23,920) Ì

Balance, end of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 518,468 977,580 Ì

Common stock outstanding, end of yearÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 87,300,887 86,820,706 87,709,465

(c) The Corporation has a Shareholder Rights Plan under which each shareholder has one-half of a right for each
share of common stock of the Corporation held. Each right entitles the holder to purchase from the Corporation one one-
hundredth of a share of Series A Participating Cumulative Preferred Stock at an exercise price of $225. The rights attach
to all outstanding shares of common stock and trade with the common stock until the rights become exercisable. The
rights are subject to adjustment to prevent dilution of the interests represented by each right.

The rights will become exercisable and will detach from the common stock ten days after a person or group either
acquires 25% or more of the outstanding shares of the Corporation's common stock or announces a tender or exchange
oÅer which, if consummated, would result in that person or group owning 25% or more of the outstanding shares of the
Corporation's common stock.

In the event that any person or group acquires 25% or more of the outstanding shares of the Corporation's common
stock, each right will entitle the holder, other than such person or group, to purchase that number of shares of the
Corporation's common stock having a market value of two times the exercise price of the right. In the event that,
following the acquisition of 25% or more of the Corporation's outstanding common stock by a person or group, the
Corporation is acquired in a merger or other business combination transaction or 50% or more of the Corporation's assets
or earning power is sold, each right will entitle the holder to purchase common stock of the acquiring company having a
value equal to two times the exercise price of the right.

The rights do not have the right to vote or to receive dividends. The rights may be redeemed in whole, but not in part,
at a price of $.01 per right by the Corporation at any time until the tenth day after the acquisition of 25% or more of the
Corporation's outstanding common stock by a person or group. The rights will expire at the close of business on
June 12, 1999, unless previously redeemed by the Corporation.
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(d) The Corporation's insurance subsidiaries are required to Ñle annual statements with insurance regulatory
authorities prepared on an accounting basis prescribed or permitted by such authorities (statutory basis). For such
subsidiaries, generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) diÅer in certain respects from statutory accounting
practices.

A comparison of shareholders' equity on a GAAP basis and policyholders' surplus on a statutory basis is as follows:

December 31

1995 1994

GAAP Statutory GAAP Statutory

(in thousands)
Property and casualty insurance subsidiaries* ÏÏÏÏÏ $3,617,144 $2,314,720 $2,862,278 $1,923,465
Life and health insurance subsidiariesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 844,645 317,624 731,810 301,084

4,461,789 $2,632,344 3,594,088 $2,224,549

Corporate and eliminationsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 800,940 652,941

$5,262,729 $4,247,029

A comparison of GAAP and statutory net income (loss) is as follows:

Years Ended December 31

1995 1994 1993

GAAP Statutory GAAP Statutory GAAP Statutory

(in thousands)
Property and casualty insurance subsidiaries*ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $640,834 $571,199 $506,825 $468,861 $210,204** $ 96,965
Life and health insurance subsidiariesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 42,216 26,828 20,551 (4,264) 76,853** 31,890

683,050 $598,027 527,376 $464,597 287,057 $128,855

Corporate and eliminations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 13,578 1,093 57,160**
Cumulative eÅect of changes in accounting principles,

net of taxÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì (20,000)

$696,628 $528,469 $324,217

* A property and casualty subsidiary owns the real estate subsidiaries.

** Before cumulative eÅect of changes in accounting principles.

(e) The Corporation's ability to continue to pay dividends to shareholders and interest on debt obligations is aÅected
by the availability of liquid assets held by the Corporation and by the dividend paying ability of its insurance subsidiaries.
Various state insurance laws restrict the Corporation's insurance subsidiaries as to the amount of dividends they may pay
to the Corporation without the prior approval of regulatory authorities. The restrictions are generally based on net income
and on certain levels of policyholders' surplus as determined in accordance with statutory accounting practices. Dividends
in excess of such thresholds are considered ""extraordinary'' and require prior regulatory approval. During 1995, these
subsidiaries paid dividends to the Corporation totaling $244,008,000.

The maximum dividend distribution that may be made by insurance subsidiaries to the Corporation during 1996
without prior approval is approximately $465,000,000.

(18) Subsequent Event

On March 1, 1996, the Board of Directors approved a two-for-one stock split payable to shareholders of record on
April 19, 1996. The share and per share amounts in the consolidated Ñnancial statements have not been adjusted to reÖect
the stock split. Net income per share and the weighted average number of common and common equivalent shares
outstanding on a pro forma basis to reÖect the stock split were as follows:

Years Ended December 31

1995 1994 1993

Net income per shareÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $3.93 $2.98 $1.84

Average common and common equivalent
shares outstandingÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 179,884,682 180,899,154 181,097,068

At the same time, the Board of Directors approved an increase in the number of authorized shares of common stock of the
Corporation from 300,000,000 shares to 600,000,000 shares.
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Report of Independent Auditors

ERNST & YOUNG LLP

787 Seventh Avenue
New York, New York 10019

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
The Chubb Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The Chubb Corporation as of December 31, 1995
and 1994, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders' equity and cash Öows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 1995.  These Ñnancial statements are the responsibility of the Corporation's
management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ñnancial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards.  Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ñnancial statements are free of material
misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
Ñnancial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and signiÑcant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall Ñnancial statement presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the Ñnancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
Ñnancial position of The Chubb Corporation at December 31, 1995 and 1994 and the consolidated results of its operations
and its cash Öows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 1995 in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles.

As described in Note (2) to the Ñnancial statements, The Chubb Corporation changed its methods of accounting for
loan impairment in 1995, for investments in certain debt and equity securities in 1994 and for income taxes and
postretirement beneÑts other than pensions in 1993.

February 23, 1996,
except for Note 18, as to which
the date is March 1, 1996
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Quarterly Financial Data

Summarized unaudited quarterly Ñnancial data (in millions except per share data) for 1995 and 1994 are shown
below. In management's opinion, the interim Ñnancial data contain all adjustments, consisting of normal recurring items,
necessary to present fairly the results of operations for the interim periods.

Three Months Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

1995 1994 1995 1994 1995 1994 1995 1994

Revenues ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1,464.1 $1,396.0 $1,525.8 $1,414.6 $1,533.3 $1,428.9 $1,566.0 $1,470.0
BeneÑts and expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,280.1 1,326.3 1,285.2 1,232.1 1,312.0 1,236.6 1,311.8 1,275.1
Federal and foreign income tax (credit) ÏÏÏÏÏ 37.3 (3.5) 55.6 35.8 49.9 39.6 60.7 39.0

Net incomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 146.7 $ 73.2 $ 185.0 $ 146.7 $ 171.4 $ 152.7 $ 193.5 $ 155.9

Net income per share ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 1.66 $ .83 $ 2.09 $ 1.65 $ 1.93 $ 1.71 $ 2.17 $ 1.76

Underwriting ratios
Losses to premiums earned ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 63.3% 76.6% 64.5% 63.8% 65.4% 63.8% 65.5% 64.2%
Expenses to premiums written ÏÏÏÏÏÏ 33.0 33.3 31.9 32.5 31.5 32.1 32.1 32.3

Combined ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 96.3% 109.9% 96.4% 96.3% 96.9% 95.9% 97.6% 96.5%

Net income in the Ñrst quarter of 1994 was adversely aÅected by catastrophe losses of $147.4 million, resulting
primarily from the earthquake in California and the winter storms in the eastern and midwestern parts of the United
States, which represented 16.3 percentage points of the combined ratio.
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Common Stock Data

The common stock of the Corporation is listed and principally traded on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE).
The following are the high and low closing sale prices as reported on the NYSE Composite Tape and the quarterly
dividends declared for each quarter of 1995 and 1994.

1995

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Common stock prices

High ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $81.00 $85.13 $96.88 $100.50

LowÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 76.50 77.50 78.25 90.13

Dividends declared ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ .49 .49 .49 .49

1994

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Common stock prices

High ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $83.13 $82.63 $78.63 $78.50

LowÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 70.75 72.00 69.50 68.63

Dividends declared ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ .46 .46 .46 .46

At March 1, 1996, there were approximately 8,375 common shareholders of record.
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